
Agenda

Oxfordshire Growth Board Scrutiny Panel
Tuesday 15 September 2020 at 6.30 pm
Virtual Meeting 
From 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021, the Oxfordshire Growth Board meetings are managed by Vale 
of White Horse District Council.
Contact: Kevin Jacob, Growth Board Democratic Services Officer
E-mail: democratic.services@oxfordshiregrowthboard.org  
Telephone: 01235 422191
Website: www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org 

Members:

Councillor Andrew Gant (Chair)
Councillor John Tanner
Councillor Craig Simmons

Oxford City Council 

Councillor Tom Wallis 
Councillor Lucinda Wing
Councillor Sean Woodcock, (Vice-Chair)

Cherwell District Council

Councillor Nick Carter
Councillor Damian Haywood
Councillor Richard Webber

Oxfordshire County Council 

Councillor Peter Dragonetti
Councillor David Turner
Councillor Sarah Gray 

South Oxfordshire District Council 

Councillor Andy Cooke
Councillor Hayleigh Gascoigne
Councillor Matt Barber

Vale of White Horse District Council

Councillor Derek Cotterill 
Councillor Alex Postan
Councillor Julian Cooper

West Oxfordshire District Council 

The quorum is six members, one from each council. Substitutes are allowed and should be notified 
to the contact above. 

The meeting will be web streamed. Please see the note at: 
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=604&MId=2785 on how to 
observe the meeting. 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record the meeting please let the contact officer know in 
advance of this meeting.  

mailto:democratic.services@oxfordshiregrowthboard.org
http://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=604&MId=2785


AGENDA

1.  Apologies for absence, substitutes; declarations of interest and 
Chair's announcements  

2.  Minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 6 - 13)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 22 July 2020

3.  Public participation  

Members of the public may submit an address or question in writing to the Scrutiny 
Panel, where notice in writing is given to the secretariat no later than 17:00 on 
Wednesday 9 September 2020. Questions and addresses should be no longer than one 
side of A4 paper in Ariel 12 font. The statement or question will be circulated to the Panel 
and read out by the democratic services officer or Chair on behalf of those who have 
submitted them. A response may be given at the meeting or a written answer supplied. 
The Chair will have discretion to manage the public participation procedure as they see 
appropriate. Public speakers may be invited to speak at the virtual meeting, subject to 
technical arrangements being in place. Written submissions may also be read out by the 
Chair or Democratic Services Officer where requested

Questions and notice of addresses must be submitted to 
democratic.services@oxfordshiregrowthboard.org 

4.  Growth Board response to scrutiny panel recommendations - 22 
July 2020  (Pages 14 - 18)

To consider the Growth Board’s response to the recommendations to the Board from the 
Scrutiny Panel meeting on 22 July 2020

5.  Update from Councillor Emily Smith, Chair of the Oxfordshire 
Growth Board  

Councillor Emily Smith, Chair of the Oxfordshire Growth Board and Leader of the Vale of 
White Horse District Council has been invited to attend this meeting to give an update. 

6.  Items for information due for the Growth Board meeting on 22 
September 2020  

(a)  OxCam Arc Local Natural Capital Plan (Pages 19 - 25)

To note a presentation to the Growth Board from the Environment Agency 
concerning the OxCam Arc Local Natural Capital Plan. 

mailto:democratic.services@oxfordshiregrowthboard.org


(b)  Oxfordshire Economic Recovery Plan (To Follow)

To note that a presentation is to be given to the Growth Board concerning 
progress in the development of an Economic Recovery Plan, (ERP) for 
Oxfordshire, which is being developed in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. 
Work on the ERP and the presentation is ongoing and may not be available until 
the date of the Growth Board meeting. Copies will be supplied to the Panel as 
soon as possible after this. 

7.  Growth Board Continuous Improvement Programme  (Pages 26 - 33)

To consider a report to the Growth Board setting progress and recommendations 
associated with the longer-term conclusions of the Growth Board review

8.  Oxford to Cambridge Arc Update  (Pages 34 - 36)

To consider a report to the Growth Board setting out an update on the current work being 
undertaken relating to the Oxford to Cambridge Arc

9.  Consultation on England's Economic Heartland's draft Transport 
Strategy  (Pages 37 - 56)

To review a report to the Growth Board setting out a suggested response on behalf of the 
Growth Board to England’s Economic Heartland’s consultation on its draft Transport 
Strategy.

10.  Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal  

(a)  Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal Progress Report - Quarter 1 2020/2021 (Pages 
57 - 71)

To consider a report to the Growth Board setting out the Quarter 1 2020/2021 
progress report for the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal and any 
amendments to the work programme as necessary. 

(b)  Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal Financial Outturn - Quarter 1 2020/2021 
(Pages 72 - 77)

To consider a report to the Growth Board setting out the Quarter 1 2020/21 
financial outturn report for the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal

(c)  Infrastructure sub-group update (Pages 78 - 81)

To receive summary notes from the meeting held on 24 August 2020.

(d)  Oxfordshire Plan 2050 subgroup - update (Pages 82 - 86)

To receive summary notes from the meetings held on 16 July 2020 and 20 
August 2020.



11.  Work Programme for the Scrutiny Panel and Action Log - 
September 2020  (Pages 87 - 94)

To discuss the draft work programme for the Panel as submitted by the Panel’s Scrutiny 
Officer and requests for information/actions from previous meetings 

12.  Dates of next meetings  

The dates of future Scrutiny Panel meetings are below. 

 Tues 17 Nov 6.30 pm 
 Tues 19 Jan 2021 6.30 pm 
 Tues 16 Feb 2021 6.30 pm
 Tues 16 Mar 2021 6.30 pm 
 Tues 1 June 2021 6.30 pm

Councillors’ duties on declaring interests

General duty
You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item on the 
agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you. 

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest? 
Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for expenses 
incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your election expenses); 
contracts; land in the council’s area; licences for land in the council’s area; corporate tenancies; 
and securities.  These declarations must be recorded in each councillor’s register of interests 
which is publicly available on the council’s website. 

Declaring an interest 
Where any matter disclosed in your register of interests is being considered at a meeting, you must 
declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the nature as well as the existence of 
the interest.  If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting 
you must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the meeting 
whilst the matter is discussed. 

Member’s Code of Conduct and public perception 
Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Councillors’ Code of 
Conduct says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer 
an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and that “you must not place 
yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be questioned”.  What this means is 
that the matter of interests must be viewed within the context of the code as a whole and regard 
should continue to be paid to the perception of the public. 

*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or himself but 
also those of the member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband or wife or as if 
they were civil partners.  





Minutes
OF A MEETING OF THE

Oxfordshire Growth Board Scrutiny 
Panel

HELD ON WEDNESDAY 22 JULY 2020 AT 6.30 PM HELD VIRTUALLY

Present:

Councillors Andrew Gant (Chair), Councillor Matthew Barber, Nick Carter, Councillor Andy 
Cooke, Derek Cotterill, Peter Dragonetti, Councillor Hayleigh Gascoigne, Sarah Gray, 
Damian Haywood, Alex Postan, Craig Simmons, John Tanner, David Turner, Richard 
Webber, Lucinda Wing and Sean Woodcock, (Vice-Chair)

Officers contributing to and supporting the Panel:
Amit Alva Project and Scrutiny Officer – Oxfordshire Growth Board
Susan Harbour Strategic Partnerships Manager – South and Vale District Councils
Bev Hindle Growth Board Director – Oxfordshire Growth Board
Kevin Jacob Democratic Services Officer – Oxfordshire Growth Board
Stefan Robinson Growth Board Manager – Oxfordshire Growth Board
Paul Staines Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal Delivery Manager
Nigel Tipple OxLEP Chief Executive 

1. Apologies for absence, substitutes; declarations of interest and 
Chair's announcements 

Apologies for absence were received from Julian Cooper, West Oxfordshire District 
Council. 

There were no declarations of interest.

The Chair set out the process that would be followed in running the meeting virtually, 
(including participation by members of the public).  It was noted that a recording of the 
meeting could be found by clicking on this link.

2. Minutes of the previous meeting 

The minutes of the previous meeting held on 28 May 2020 were approved as a correct 
record subject to the correction of a minor typographical error in Item 8, bullet 7.

3. Public participation 

Dr Peter Collins on behalf of CPRE Oxfordshire, submitted a question that referred to 
the timings of the Growth Board Scrutiny Panel meetings and the Growth Board Review 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xl83mQP81LQ


Stage 1 outcomes. It asked for the Panel to consider holding meetings further in advance 
of the Growth Board and whether a sub-committee should be established to deal with 
issues arising between Panel and Growth Board meetings. 

The question advised that a recommendation should be submitted to the Board enshrining 
the timely provision of documents to the Scrutiny Panel within its own Terms of Reference. 
It also suggested that the local authority leaders should be more answerable to their own 
council members in relation to the Oxford to Cambridge Arc.   

In response, the Chair commented that it was part of the role of local authority leaders on 
the Growth Board to report back to their own council – they could then be held 
accountable for their actions. He suggested that members of the Panel, at its next 
meeting, might wish to comment on how they felt this oversight process was working in 
practice. 

In respects of updates on the Arc, the Panel would, by virtue of considering the Growth 
Board Agenda, receive and consider related reports. The Chair hoped that this would 
include any form of possible Oxford to Cambridge Arc ‘Prospectus’.  

In relation to the timings of meetings and the availability of reports, the Chair noted that 
officers had been working very hard to address these challenges and that the changes that 
they had introduced were now beginning to take effect. In addition, the Panel was also 
looking at the possibility of establishing Task and Finish Groups to undertake specific 
pieces of work.

Charlie Hicks submitted a question which challenged the Panel to consider planning for 
Oxfordshire in 2050 from the perspective of people born in the 1990s. He advocated for 
the application of the good design principles used in the tech sector. These focused on the 
needs of the future user rather than those of the present.

In discussion, members of the Panel supported the sentiments expressed in the question. 
They agreed with the need to engage with, and be more representative of, young people in 
both planning for Oxfordshire’s future (via the Oxfordshire Plan 2050) and in politics more 
generally. Continuing concerns were highlighted regarding the level of engagement by 
young people in the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 consultations and any outputs arising from 
that. The Chair indicated that he would raise these matters with the Growth Board.  

Councillor Simmons suggested that the Panel should consider becoming more proactive in 
its approach to engaging with young people. He suggested that this might potentially 
include activity to develop policy. The Chair commented that this could be encompassed 
within the work of the suggested Task and Finish Groups.

4. Growth Board response to scrutiny panel recommendations - 2 
June 2020 

The Panel noted the Growth Board’s responses to the recommendations from the meeting 
held on 28 May 2020 as set out in the Agenda.

5. Covid-19 Recovery 

The Panel considered a report to the Growth Board setting out the collective approach 
being taken within Oxfordshire to support the local economy and the wider recovery in 

Page 7



response to the pandemic. Nigel Tipple, Chief Executive of the Oxfordshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership and Bev Hindle, Growth Board Director, presented the report to the 
Panel and answered questions. 

In discussion, the Panel noted that, as part of the recovery and renewal process, several 
well-attended online job fairs had been held. These sought to match vacancies with both 
current job seekers and those at risk of redundancy. It was acknowledged, however, that 
these did not yet fully cover staff who are currently furloughed but at risk of redundancy – 
this was thought to be a significant issue as both lockdown and the current support 
measures were wound down.  

The Panel, in questioning whether any of the fundamentals of the Oxfordshire Housing 
and Growth Deal had changed considering the pandemic, noted that the situation 
remained unclear. Conversations were ongoing with HM Government on several issues 
including the deliverability of the some of the programme timescales and potential options 
around extending the flexibilities for the use of Deal funding.

Nigel Tipple referred to the possibility of providing grants to support businesses to pivot 
towards the new situation created by Covid-19. This potential option was currently being 
looked into.

The Panel was supportive of the collective action set out in the report. They acknowledged 
that it represented a snapshot of activity in what was a complex and constantly evolving 
situation. 

Members felt that the situation facing Oxfordshire had changed fundamentally (because of 
the pandemic and other issues e.g. the climate emergency) and that fresh thinking was 
now required. It was, therefore, suggested that there was a need to approach the Covid-19 
response from the perspective of a genuine renewal of economic plans – the principles of 
recovery as set out by the C40 Mayors were highlighted as a potential option.

The Panel also emphasised its view on the importance of science and technology 
industries aiding economic recovery and renewal especially those sectors contributing 
towards the environment and healthy living in a post Covid-19 Oxfordshire.

With regards to the Active Travel Programme, Councillor Gray referred to what she felt 
had been the cancellation of the Thame to Haddenham cycleway without consultation with 
South Oxfordshire District Council.  Bev Hindle, Growth Board Director, and Susan 
Harbour, Strategic Partnerships Manager, South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse 
District Councils, agreed to update Councillor Gray on the specific circumstances of that 
individual scheme outside of the meeting.  

RESOLVED: That the Scrutiny Panel recommends: 
1. That the Growth Board, in considering its role in the Post-Covid-19 recovery, supports 

the principles of recovery as agreed by the C40 Mayors:

 The recovery should not be a return to ‘business as usual’ – because that is a 
world on track for 3°C or more of over-heating;

 The recovery, above all, must be guided by an adherence to public health and 
scientific expertise, in order to assure the safety of those who live in our cities; 

Page 8



 Excellent public services, public investment and increased community resilience 
will form the most effective basis for the recovery; 

 The recovery must address issues of equity that have been laid bare by the 
impact of the crisis – for example, workers who are now recognised as essential 
should be celebrated and compensated accordingly and policies must support 
people living in informal settlements;

 The recovery must improve the resilience of our cities and communities. 
Therefore, investments should be made to protect against future threats – 
including the climate crisis – and to support those people impacted by climate 
and health risks;

 Climate action can help accelerate economic recovery and enhance social 
equity, using new technologies and the creation of new industries and new jobs. 
These will drive wider benefits for our residents, workers, students, businesses 
and visitors; 

 We commit to doing everything in our power and the power of our city 
governments to ensure that the recovery from COVID-19 is healthy, equitable 
and sustainable;

 We commit to using our collective voices and individual actions to ensure that 
national governments support both cities and the investments needed in cities, to 
deliver an economic recovery that is healthy, equitable and sustainable;

 We commit to using our collective voices and individual actions to ensure that 
international and regional institutions invest directly in cities to support a healthy, 
equitable and sustainable recovery.

2. That the Growth Board, in considering its role in the Post-Covid-19 recovery, 
champions the role of the science and technology industries in delivering economic 
recovery and renewal, especially where those sectors can contribute towards our local 
environmental and healthy living ambitions; areas that the Panel felt were not sufficiently 
recognised within the report presented to them.  

6. Growth Board Review Stage 1 Implementation 

The Panel considered a report to the Growth Board which set out progress to date in 
implementing early actions from the review. It requested endorsement and approval of a 
suite of revised governance documents which had been updated to reflect the outcome of 
the review.

The Chair expressed some concern that the Panel was being invited to give its comments 
after the report had already been considered and approved by several Growth Board 
partner councils. He acknowledged that technical approval of the report and 
recommendations rested with the sovereign local authorities but commented that, in his 
view, it was not effectively possible for those councils to make any changes or to reject the 
new Terms of Reference.

In discussion, proposed measures to improve public participation by the earlier publication 
of Growth Board agendas was welcomed. The view was, nevertheless, expressed that the 

Page 9



size of these documents (at over 150 pages) could act as a potential disincentive. It was, 
however, acknowledged that, in most cases, the covering reports set out the key 
information. With regards to public speaking, the Panel felt that the Growth Board’s 
website should clearly set out how members of the public could register to speak at future 
meetings.

It was noted that a Freedom of Information (FOI) protocol formed part of the suite of 
revised governance documents for approval by the Growth Board. The Panel agreed that 
a recommendation should be made concerning the autonomy of responses to FOI 
requests between the Growth Board partner organisations. The aim of this would be to 
increase transparency and highlight gaps in governance.

It was commented that although there was reference to environmental bodies within the 
proposed Terms of Reference, there was not an explicit reference to flood alleviation. 
Members also felt that more detail was required in respects of the establishment of the 
proposed Local Nature Partnership. It was agreed that a recommendation should be made 
to the Growth Board requesting an update.

The Panel recognised the important role of the Growth Board’s subgroups in undertaking a 
significant amount of the Board’s detailed work, while also acknowledging the elected 
representation from each partner council on them. They also noted that the amended 
Terms of Reference placed a greater emphasis on these councillors to act as conduit 
between their local authorities and the Growth Board. The Panel, therefore, felt that a 
recommendation was necessary to further clarify how subgroup members were expected 
to undertake this aspect of their role. It was also important that the subgroups were aware 
of the Scrutiny Panel’s activity. 

RESOLVED: That the Scrutiny Panel recommends that:
1. The Growth Board provide it with an update at its next meeting concerning the 

development of a Local Nature Partnership for Oxfordshire

2. The Growth Board provides clarity about how members of its Advisory Sub-Group will 
be expected to carry out their conduit role between that group and their local authority, 
as suggested in the Terms of Reference for those groups.

3. The Growth Board ensures that the Advisory Subgroups have access to the minutes of 
the Scrutiny Panel meetings.

4. The Growth Board makes visible on its website’s home page how the public can 
register to speak at future meetings of the Board.

7. Oxford to Cambridge Arc Update 

The Panel considered a report to the Growth Board setting out an update on the work 
currently being undertaken regarding the Oxford to Cambridge Arc. Activities in progress 
included the formulation of an Arc level response and proposal to HM Government around 
a Covid-19 recovery strategy. Bev Hindle, Growth Board Director, commented that such 
updates would now be a standing item on the Growth Board’s Agenda.  

The Chair welcomed the inclusion of natural capital planning within the Arc’s workstreams 
and priorities. The Panel were informed that natural capital mapping had been piloted 

Page 10



nationally within the Arc and was being utilised as part of the development of the 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050.

It was noted that there were no current plans for the Arc to become a combined authority. 
Moreover, while HM Government’s Spring Statement had mentioned the establishment of 
several development corporations, none of these were relevant to Oxfordshire.

8. Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal 

It was suggested by the Chair – and agreed by the Panel – that the reports in relation to 
the Housing and Growth Deal could be considered and noted together with queries raised 
by exception.

(a) Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Progress Report - Year Two 
The Panel considered and noted a report to the Growth Board which set out progress as of 
Quarter 4, Year 2 (2019/2020) of the Housing and Growth Deal. 

In discussion, the Panel revisited previous debates around the National Planning Policy 
Framework’s (NPPF) definition of affordable housing and whether it captured real 
affordability for residents. It was felt that further information would be required before an 
objective calculation, incorporating the median income in Oxfordshire, could establish the 
actual number of affordable homes.

The view was also expressed that it was important to place the user at the centre of 
planning for the future – an opinion expressed by the previous public speakers. In addition, 
there was a need to encourage capital investment from the private sector through 
incentives and concessions. This would allow for public sector spending to be freed up for 
other projects.

Concerns were also raised that countryside housing developments on the outskirts of the 
city of Oxford could lead to a higher risk of flooding in neighbouring rural areas. The Panel, 
therefore, recommended that Green Belt boundaries should be re-examined as part of the 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050 – with a focus on flood risk.

RESOLVED: That the Scrutiny Panel recommends that:
1. The Growth Board in its reporting for the Housing Sub-group categorise Affordable 

Housing in two sub-categories:

i) Affordable Housing: 80% market rate (NPPF)
ii) Affordable Housing: 5 x median household income (mortgage rates)

2. The Growth Board in its work with Oxfordshire Plan 2050 re-examine the boundaries 
of Green Belt with a focus on countryside housing developments and its impact on 
flood risk areas.

3. The Growth Board investigate ways of funding public infrastructure projects by 
incentivising private sector organisations in order to attract private capital investment; 
decreasing budgetary pressures on these projects.

(b) Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal Financial Outturn 2019/2020 
The Panel considered and noted a report to the Growth Board on the 2019/2020 financial 
outturn and programme overview of the Housing and Growth Deal. 

Page 11



In discussion, reference was made to Annex 2 of the report which included a table setting 
out details of capital and revenue expenditure for Housing and Growth Deal schemes. It 
was expressed that the figures indicated that the current level of activity was minimal and, 
therefore, it would be helpful if there was indication of expected scheme start dates. The 
Panel was informed that from September 2020, it was expected that further information on 
the status of schemes would be presented to the Growth Board in a dashboard format.  

(c) Infrastructure sub-group update 
The Panel noted the summary notes of the Infrastructure subgroup held on 11 May 2020.

(d) Housing sub-group update 
The Panel noted the summary notes of Housing Advisory subgroup held on 16 June 2020.

(e) Oxfordshire Plan 2050 sub-group update 
The Panel noted the summary notes of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 subgroup held between 
March and June 2020.

(f) Oxfordshire Plan 2050: Letter to HM Government 
The Panel noted and supported the draft letter to the Secretary of State for Housing, 
Communities and Local Government.

9. Community Led Housing in Oxfordshire 

The Panel considered a report to the Growth Board setting out the findings of a study into 
the Oxfordshire Community Led Housing (CLH) landscape. It proposed draft 
recommendations for either individual partner local authorities or the Growth Board to 
consider. Paul Staines, Growth Deal Service Delivery Manager for Housing, highlighted 
that he costs of the initial study had been met by a £36,000 grant provided by Homes 
England and that the Board was being asked to endorse the establishment of action plans 
in respects of the specific recommendations arising from the study.  

The Panel strongly welcomed the report and supported its recommendations. It was felt 
that CLH should be encouraged wherever possible – notwithstanding that different 
localities would require tailored needs.

10. Work Programme for the Scrutiny Panel and Action Log - July 
2020 

The work programme and action log were considered as set out in the agenda. Amit Alva, 
Growth Board Scrutiny Officer, explained that information and a Gantt Chart regarding the 
progress of infrastructure schemes to support housing would be available in mid-August. 
Material relating to the Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy would also be provided.  

11. Dates of next meetings 

The Panel noted the dates for scheduled meetings as follows:

 Tues 15 Sept 2020 6.30 pm
 Tues 17 Nov 2020 6.30 pm 
 Tues 19 Jan 2021 6.30 pm 

Page 12



 Tues 16 Feb 2021 6.30 pm
 Tues 16 Mar 2021 6.30 pm 
 Tues 1 June 2021 6.30 pm

The meeting closed at 8.35 pm

Page 13



 
 

 
 
Growth Board response to recommendations of the Growth Board Scrutiny Panel  
Recommendations made on 22nd July 2020 
 
The Growth Board is requested to provide a draft response to the recommendations of the Scrutiny Panel, to be published as a supplement 
collectively with the Scrutiny Panel’s report, for decision at its meeting on 28 July 2020.  

 

Recommendation Agree?  Comment 
Recommendation 1. That the Growth Board, in considering its role in 

the Post-Covid-19 recovery, supports the principles of recovery as 

agreed by the C40 Mayors: 

• The recovery should not be a return to ‘business as usual’ - 

because that is a world on track for 3°C or more of over-heating; 

• The recovery, above all, must be guided by an adherence to 

public health and scientific expertise, in order to assure the 

safety of those who live in our cities;  

• Excellent public services, public investment and increased 

community resilience will form the most effective basis for the 

recovery;  

• The recovery must address issues of equity that have been laid 

bare by the impact of the crisis – for example, workers who are 

now recognised as essential should be celebrated and 

compensated accordingly and policies must support people 

living in informal settlements; 

• The recovery must improve the resilience of our cities and 

communities. Therefore, investments should be made to protect 

against future threats – including the climate crisis – and to 

support those people impacted by climate and health risks; 

• Climate action can help accelerate economic recovery and 

enhance social equity, using new technologies and the creation 

of new industries and new jobs. These will drive wider benefits 

for our residents, workers, students, businesses and visitors;  

• We commit to doing everything in our power and the power of 

our city governments to ensure that the recovery from COVID-

19 is healthy, equitable and sustainable; 

Yes (in 
principle) 

The Board supports these principles, however the decision to 
specifically commit to these principles’ rests with the 
constituent partners of the Growth Board. Importantly, 
Oxfordshire is a rural county with many towns and villages as 
well as City. 
 

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 4



• We commit to using our collective voices and individual actions 

to ensure that national governments support both cities and the 

investments needed in cities, to deliver an economic recovery 

that is healthy, equitable and sustainable; 

• We commit to using our collective voices and individual actions 

to ensure that international and regional institutions invest 

directly in cities to support a healthy, equitable and sustainable 

recovery. 

Recommendation 2. That the Growth Board, in considering its role in 
the Post-Covid-19 recovery, champions the role of the science and 
technology industries in delivering economic recovery and renewal, 
especially where those sectors can contribute towards our local 
environmental and healthy living ambitions; areas that the Panel felt 
were not sufficiently recognised within the report presented to them.   
 

Yes The strategic direction set out in the Oxfordshire Local 
Industrial Strategy (LIS), which is a key element of our Housing 
and Growth Deal, makes clear the importance of local science 
and technology sectors in Oxfordshire’s future. It explains 
“Oxfordshire wants to be a pioneer for clean and sustainable 
growth, known as the location which harnesses the dynamic 
potential of its science and technological innovation for the 
benefit of local residents, business and improved public 
services which is an exemplar for contemporary living and 
design, and delivers sustainable and flourishing communities.” 
The strategy continues throughout to give great emphasis to 
the importance of local innovation in contributing to a 
sustainable and healthy future for Oxfordshire.  
 
The LIS is focused on certain sectors of our local economy and 
both executive and associate members of the Growth Board 
have responsibility to support all sectors, small and large to 
participate and respond to the challenges and opportunities the 
post-Covid, post-Brexit world presents. 
 
The Board notes this was only an update report and was not 
setting out an exhaustive or exclusive strategy for recovery – 
the Board recognises the role this sector needs to play when 
the Economic Recovery Plan for Oxfordshire takes shape.  
 

Recommendation 3. That the Growth Board revise its Freedom of 
Information Request Procedure to remove references that permit local 
authorities to consult other local authorities on how they intend to 
respond; this would ensure the responses are transparent and highlight 
any gaps in governance or policy related issues. 
 

No The Board has sought Monitoring Officer advice, and where 
FOI or EIR requests relate to the Growth Board’s work, they 
will by their nature affect all of the local authorities in 
Oxfordshire as constituent members of the Board. Therefore, it 
would be courteous and good practice to notify those other 
affected Councils. This practice is consistent with the S45 
Code of Practice. The Panel should be assured that it is the 
receiving authority’s legal duty to apply its own mind in 
responding, even after such consultation, which is what the 

P
age 15



Protocol reflects. It is explicit that “achieving a ‘consistent’ 
response cannot be the primary aim.” It is expected however 
that this approach will lead to a more meaningful outcome for 
the requester. 
 
The Protocol summarises that it “provides a legally compliant 
means of dealing with such requests while providing a degree 
of mutual consultation whilst also ensuring the identity of 
requesters is not disclosed to other members of the Growth 
Board… This process is on the basis that, while each authority 
is an FOI authority, consultation between authorities on a 
proposed response does not breach that principle.” 
 

Recommendation 4. That the Growth Board provide the Scrutiny Panel 
with an update at its next meeting concerning the development of a 
Local Nature Partnership for Oxfordshire. 
 

Yes Agreed, as part of the Growth Board Review Stage 2 Report. 
 

Recommendation 5. That the Growth Board provides clarity about how 
members of its Advisory Sub-Group will be expected to carry out their 
conduit role between that group and their local authority, as suggested 
in the Terms of Reference for those groups. 
 

Yes As lead executive members for their respective portfolios, it is 
expected that members of the Advisory Subgroup will be well 
networked into their Council. Since these groups were set up, 
councils have adopted their own approach to this. Some 
provide updates through their Cabinets and some have pre-
meetings involving officers to discuss upcoming agendas. 
There is no uniform approach, and no current central resource 
available to support members in undertaking their conduit role, 
but support can be provided through their own councils. To 
support members, public summary notes are provided for each 
meeting and published online, which will be a useful resource. 

Recommendation 6. That the Growth Board ensures that the Advisory 
Sub-groups have access to the minutes of the Scrutiny Panel meetings. 

Yes These are made available online after each meeting as part of 
the Growth Board’s agenda packs.  
 

Recommendation 7. That the Growth Board make visible on its 
website’s home page how the public can register to speak at future 
meetings of the Board. 
 

Yes 
 
 
 

The Board will ask that the Oxfordshire Growth Board website 
be updated before its next meeting to raise the profile of the 
opportunity for the public can take part in our meetings. 

 
Recommendation 8: That the Growth Board in its reporting for the 
Housing Sub-group categorise Affordable Housing in two sub-
categories 

i) Affordable Housing: 80% market rate (NPPF) 
ii) Affordable Housing: 5 x median household income 

(mortgage rates) 
 

In Part The Growth Board will ask officers whether this information can 
be made available for the Sub-group.  

P
age 16



Thus, giving the actual number of truly affordable houses as per the 
median household income in Oxfordshire. 
 

Recommendation 9: That the Growth Board in its work with Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050 re-examine the boundaries of Green Belt with a focus on 
countryside housing developments and its impact on flood risk areas.  

In part The Oxfordshire Plan will be developed in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework which sets out that 
inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding should 
be avoided by directing development away from areas at 
highest risk, but where development is necessary, making it 
safe without increasing flood risk elsewhere. Consideration will 
need to be given to any local flood risk management plans, 
strategic flood risk assessments and a wide range of studies 
that will form part of the Plan’s evidence base. A Green Belt 
study was commissioned in 2015 on behalf of all the 
Oxfordshire Local Planning Authorities, and there have also 
been a number of recent local studies to support individual 
Local Plan evidence bases, for which the Oxfordshire Plan will 
need to take into account. Throughout the project we will 
review all the available evidence base materials and update 
and/or supplement that as appropriate to ensure that the 
Oxfordshire Plan is based on the best available 
evidence.  Changes to the Green Belt boundaries can only be 
made in exceptional circumstances, as defined in the NPPF, 
through the Plan making process.  
 

Recommendation 10: That the Growth Board investigate ways of 
funding public Infrastructure Projects by incentivising private sector 
organisations in order to attract capital investment; decreasing 
budgetary pressures on these projects. 

In part While we do work closely with private sector developers to 
ensure we are maximising private sector investment and 
supplementing that where mitigation requires it with further 
legal agreements (e.g. S.106 or CIL), and indeed have used 
public funding to leverage significant private sector investment 
through programmes such as City Deal and Local Growth 
Fund, there is no specific mechanism to “incentivise” the 
private sector to deliver publicly beneficial capital investment 
for infrastructure.  We have as a group of local authorities 
lobbied Government to create greater long term funding 
certainty so that we can continue to leverage and attract 
private sector investment – we have also suggested that we 
could look to “incentivise good growth options if we were 
afforded local determination over the release of that funding – 

P
age 17



something that is very difficult to do under traditional Green 
Belt business cases whilst also avoiding any perception or 
actual contravention of state aid law.  This is something though 
the Growth Board should continue to lobby for as the principle 
raised by Scrutiny is a good one. 

 

P
age 18



OxCam Arc Local Natural Capital Plan

Jeanne Capey, Project Director, Environment Agency
Oxfordshire Growth Board - September 2020

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 6a



ן Provide an overarching, integrated approach to identifying environmental 

interventions, opportunities and risks to plan with partners to deliver net gain

and multiple benefits

ן Provide an evidence base - Mapping and evaluating the Arc’s natural capital 

and ecosystem services to provide a consistent environmental baseline to 

measure change and plan meaningful and integrated nature-based 

interventions

ן Identify the environmental, economic and social benefits that flow from 

nature – and explain their worth and potential to support blended finance

ן Help to de-risk growth by enabling environmentally-focused and informed 

decision making - facilitating green recovery, project speed and also

delivering net zero

ן Support cross boundary and partnership working – common aims, evidence 

and information

The foundations for the “Green Arc” 

The OxCam LNCP can…

P
age 20



Collaborative co-creation

P
age 21



Natural Capital Indicator Maps 

supporting our baseline 

highlighting some quality 

indicators - based on the NE Atlas
Mapping Ecosystem 

Services  to show what 

our natural assets 

provide

Creating a Natural Capital Baseline of 

asset type, quantity and location.

Natural Capital Account to 

articulate benefits and 

values that flow from 

The natural capital of the 

Arc

Mapping Opportunities and 

risks across the Arc

Investment 

Toolkit and other 

guides to 

highlight why 

and how to take a 

natural capital 

approach

Co-design with 

partners and 

specialist 

review  to create 

a natural capital 

planning tool

P
age 22



A snapshot of value and benefits…

5

P
age 23



Working with local partners to 
expand our knowledge base

ן We have worked with our local partners to explore:

ן The different ways that investment 

for environmental projects could 

be obtained from traditional and 

non-traditional sources

▪ This included supporting a 

study that researched and 

compared current approaches 

to natural capital investment 

planning

▪ And a study that investigated 

how a Landscape Enterprise 

Network could be developed in 

Oxfordshire

ן Whether the condition of natural 

capital could be assessed using 

GIS data

ן Natural capital is important but on 

an Arc wide scale it is not practical 

to complete site surveys 

ן We therefore wanted to 

understand whether other data 

could be used to assess condition

P
age 24



Next steps

ן Communications and embedding: step by step guides on 

creating and using the Local Natural Capital Plan, its evidence 

base and approaches

ן Lessons learned and recommendations: to support 

change, future LNCPs, capacity building and feed into policy 

reviews

ן Testing the approach: applying to a more local scale and 

identifying options with multiple benefits

P
age 25



www.OxfordshireGrowthBoard.org 

To: Oxfordshire Growth Board

Title of Report: Growth Board Continuous Improvement Programme 

Date: 22 September 2020

Report of: Bev Hindle, Growth Board Director 

Stefan Robinson, Growth Board Manager

Introduction

1. This report provides a summary of progress made on secondary actions arising 
from the Growth Board’s review of its functions. This is part of a continuing 
improvement plan that the Board will be taking forward. In July and August 2020, 
each of the principal local authorities in Oxfordshire agreed to adopt new terms 
of reference for the Board, which now provides greater clarity as to its role and 
purpose going forward.

2. The Board’s role centres on coordinating local efforts to manage economic, 
housing and infrastructure development in a way that is inclusive and maximises 
local social and environmental benefits. This includes supporting the 
development of local planning policy that aspires for biodiversity gain and net 
zero carbon by 2050. This new purpose resonates with, and takes account of, a 
wide range of submissions received during the Growth Board’s review, which 
received contributions from over 250 people and organisations.  

3. Supported by this recharged focus on environmental and climatic issues, this 
report concentrates principally on progress being made under three thematic 
areas which emanated as areas for improvement within the review:

Executive Summary and Purpose: This report sets out progress to date in 
implementing secondary actions arising from the Growth Board’s review of its 
functions, with a specific focus on progress in establishing a Local Nature 
Partnership for Oxfordshire. 

Recommendation: That the Growth Board:
1) Notes progress to date and provides comment on the paper as a whole; 

and, 
2) Agrees to co-opt a representative of the Oxfordshire Strategic Transport 

Forum onto the Infrastructure Advisory Sub Group for the remainder of the 
2020/21 Growth Board year. 

Appendices: Oxfordshire Strategic Transport Forum Terms of Reference 

Page 26

Agenda Item 7



 Support for greater integration of environmental issues
 Support for a wider or more networked Growth Board membership 
 Support for greater communication and engagement opportunities.

Local Nature Partnerships

4. Local Nature Partnerships (LNPs) provide a joined up and strategic forum to help 
manage the natural environment in an integrated way to produce multiple 
benefits for local people, the economy and the environment. They are designed 
to promote a more formalised, systematic and collaborative approach to the 
management and enhancement of the natural environment and encompass a 
broad range of local organisations and people who are committed to this aim. 
Specifically, the role of an LNP as set out in HM Government guidance is to:

 Drive positive change in the local natural environment, taking a strategic view 
of the challenges and opportunities involved and identifying ways to manage it 
as a system for the benefit of nature, people and the economy.

 Contribute to achieving the Government’s national environmental objectives 
locally, including the identification of local ecological networks, alongside 
addressing local priorities. 

 Become local champions influencing decision-making relating to the natural 
environment and its value to social and economic outcomes, in particular, 
through working closely with local authorities, Local Enterprise Partnerships 
(LEPs) and Health and Wellbeing Boards.1

5. Brought in by the 2011 Natural Environment White Paper, LNPs now cover most 
of England, often based on the geography of upper tier local authorities. Whilst 
Oxfordshire has a strong network of environmental groups, it is one of the few 
areas not to have an LNP, and the only area within Oxford to Cambridge Arc. 
Recent research2 discusses the challenges associated with environmental 
representation, highlighting that unlike other key sectors (health, business and 
government), its complex remit makes representation challenging. However, the 
consensus is that a collaboration of multiple voluntary and professional interest 
groups provides the best opportunity to build consensus on environmental 
planning; as would be provided through an LNP. 

A Local Nature Partnership for Oxfordshire 

6. Oxfordshire has an attractive and environmentally rich rural and historic 
landscape. Its diverse landscape provides a range of benefits to wildlife, people 
and businesses, including a range of ecosystems services that benefit people 
including clean air, fresh water, surface water management and flood alleviation, 
food and forestry products, carbon capture and storage and the potential for 
renewable energy generation (see the Oxfordshire Energy Strategy). 

1 "An overview of the Local Nature Partnership role". Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs. 2012

2 A sociology of environmental representation. 2016. Available at: 
tandfonline.com/doi/full/10.1080/23251042.2016.1213611 

Page 27

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/192580/local-nature-partnerships-overview120402.pdf


7. The extent and condition of many of our environmental assets however has been 
declining over the course of decades, with major challenges including climate 
change, air and water pollution, land contamination, fragmentation of habitats 
and a decline in biodiversity. Climate emergency declarations have been made 
by all Local Authorities in Oxfordshire, alongside over 200 other local authorities, 
together with targets to achieve net zero carbon. The recent pandemic has only 
cemented an even greater recognition that tackling climate change and 
supporting the environment are critically important to our communities and must 
be a key consideration in strategic planning for the area.

8. Collective commitments in this respect should naturally read across, permeate 
and be consolidated within key strategy documents such as the Oxfordshire 
Infrastructure Strategy (OxIS), the Local Transport and Connectivity Plan (LTCP) 
and the Oxfordshire Plan 2050, among others. The increase in emphasis for the 
Growth Board in addressing environmental challenges through its new terms of 
reference is one element of this wider work, and the opportunity to develop a 
Local Nature Partnership for Oxfordshire is another. 

9. On 28 January 2020 the Growth Board provided its support for establishing a 
LNP for Oxfordshire which could link in with the Board’s work and wider regional 
discussions concerning the natural environment. This is a clear step to support 
the integration of environmental issues more formally and visibly into 
Oxfordshire’s partnership network. Critically, HM Government recognise in their 
guidance that LNPs have an important contribution to make to strategic planning 
matters within their area, including contributing to planning for sustainable land 
use, green infrastructure and green economic growth. 

10.Since the Board offered support for the establishment of an LNP, there have 
been several informal discussions with local partners to develop proposals. 
Officers have identified the need for an independent facilitator to undertake a 
stakeholder consultation which is likely to involve a mixture of virtual interviews, 
surveys and focus group meetings. This exercise will focus on gathering 
feedback on a range of issues associated with establishing an LNP (I.e 
objectives, membership and governance etc). It will also be informed by a paper 
summarising the outcomes of research undertaken by the Berkshire, 
Buckinghamshire and Oxfordshire Wildlife Trust (BBOWT) which considered best 
practice nationally with respect to LNPs. It is expected that this process will be 
completed by the end of 2020. It is hoped that a basic structure will be in place 
for the LNPs operation during Spring 2020, though this will be depended on 
several factors. 

Cross-Council Climate Change Working Group 

11.Since the recent climate emergency declarations were made by Local Authorities 
in Oxfordshire, councils have been developing their own targets and plans for 
how they will reach net zero carbon, among other ambitions. The sharing of best 
practice in this area between councils will be critical to success in this respect. 
Accordingly, officers and councillors have already held several joint meetings to 
identify areas for shared working and develop further thinking and plans.  We are 
expecting a paper on shared principles and priorities being brought to the Growth 
Board in the autumn.  Given the Growth Board’s new purpose, and the 
importance of bringing public visibility to this work, there may be opportunities for 

Page 28



this group to regularly update and present its work and progress to the Growth 
Board.

Growth Board Membership Arrangements

12.The Growth Board review found that there were several requests for an 
environmental representative to have a seat on the Board, in addition to the 
existing Environment Agency seat. The establishment of an LNP represents an 
opportunity to consider whether a seat might be offered to that group. It is 
important to note however that any LNP will be independent from the Growth 
Board and may not necessarily want to be part of its membership. Once an LNP 
has been established, this issue can be revisited.  

13.Since the Growth Board revised the Terms of Reference for its Executive Officer 
Group (EOG), a representative from the Oxfordshire Environment Board (OEB) 
has taken a seat on that group. EOG is the lead operational group that supports 
the Growth Board in its work, which aims to provide advice and support on the 
range of functions that it covers. The OEB is an alliance of local environmental 
organisations that aims to provide a voice for Oxfordshire’s Natural Environment. 
This is a demonstrable outcome of the important feedback received during the 
Growth Board’s review. This position might reasonably be reviewed once an LNP 
is established. 

14. In considering how the Growth Board could be better networked into local 
partnerships, the Growth Board’s Infrastructure Advisory Sub-group recently met 
to consider a proposal to co-opt a representative of the Oxfordshire Strategic 
Transport Forum (OSTF) onto its membership. The OSTF was formed in August 
2019 when the OxLEP Transport Sub-Group concluded that its work more 
appropriately aligned with Oxfordshire County Council as the Highways Authority 
primarily responsible for the prioritisation and allocation of funding for schemes. 
The Forum consists of representatives from major transport operators, Active 
Travel, OxLEP, District Councils, Network Rail and Highways England, and is 
looking to broaden membership to include freight.

15.The role of the OSTF is to “act as a strategic sounding board, providing rigorous 
advice, recommendations and challenge to decision making bodies on strategic 
transport opportunities, solutions and agreeing priorities for funding and delivery 
which will have a demonstrable, positive impact on Oxfordshire’s priority 
outcomes. Having considered the representations made, the Infrastructure Sub-
group agreed on 24 August 2020 to recommend that the Growth Board agree to 
their co-option for the 2020/21 Growth Board year. As a non-decision-making 
body, the Advisory Sub-group’s Terms of Reference permit co-option with the 
agreement of the Local Authority Membership of the Growth Board.  

Communication and Engagement

16.Communication and engagement was one area identified as needing 
improvement through the Growth Board review. As one of the most significant 
elements of the Housing and Growth Deal, the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 and its 
development is supported by a dedicated communications lead. The Board’s role 
in overseeing the development of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050, which will set a 
spatial framework for Oxfordshire’s future from now up to 2050, has and will 

Page 29



continue to involve a wide-ranging mix of statutory and non-statutory engagement 
exercises. 

17.Most recently, the development and delivery of Oxfordshire Open Thought (an 
online platform for the public to have their say on planning for Oxfordshire’s 
future) welcomed approximately 275 submissions, which will help inform the next 
stages of work, before the regulation 18 (Part 2) consultation takes place in 2021. 
Analysis has shown that much of the interest in this work has been generated 
through the Growth Board’s social media platforms. This work has been 
supplemented by several workshop events with school, college and university 
students, as well as a workshop held with the Voice of Oxfordshire’s Youth earlier 
this year, and the existing consultation work that has already been undertaken. 
The outcomes of this work can be viewed on the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 website. 
A further update will be provided to the Board at a later date concerning the next 
steps for the Regulation 18 (Part 2) consultation. 

18.More work is planned however to provide a systematic approach to 
communicating about the Board’s work more generally; whether that is about 
public meetings, specific schemes within the Housing and Growth Deal, or about 
the joint work of local authorities to tackle climate change. Given some of the 
successes experienced through Open Thought, a new social media protocol is 
being developed to improve the Board’s use of these platforms. A review of the 
Growth Board’s website is also being undertaken to ensure that its content 
matches with its new purpose. A new facility to record virtual meetings of the 
Scrutiny Panel and the Growth Board has also boosted our ability to share the 
content of meetings, and officers are looking at how this and other digital 
platforms can be used to improve the Growth Board’s communication with the 
public and its partners. 

Conclusion and Next Steps

19.Since the Growth Board last met, officers have refocussed the outcomes of the 
review into a programme of continuous improvement. Notwithstanding the fact 
that the Oxfordshire Growth Board was the first of its kind to be established, we 
will need to regularly review how the Board operates and remain open to making 
changes as we progress. This report should be read in tandem with a 
forthcoming paper which reflects on the lesson learnt to date concerning the 
delivery of the Housing and Growth Deal.

20.The next steps in this work will be to assess the impact that the Devolution and 
Planning White Papers might have on the Growth Board’s work. Depending on 
the content of those papers, it is expected that a report will come to the Growth 
Board soon summarising any implications. 

21. It is expected that further updates will be provided to the Board concerning 
progress in establishing an LNP, as well as wider progress towards outcomes of 
the review, at a later date. At this time, officers have not progressed discussions 
about setting up a wider partnership forum, under the Oxfordshire Leadership 
Conference concept (as reported in January 2020), given the need to firstly 
understand the outcomes of the Devolution White Paper. The Growth Board is 
asked to approve the recommendations set out in the executive summary. 

Page 30



Financial Implications 

22.None 

Legal Implications 

23.None

Report Authors:

Bev Hindle, Director Oxfordshire Growth Board

Stefan Robinson, Oxfordshire Growth Board Manager

Contact: 

bev.hindle@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Stefan.robinson@southandvale.gov.uk

Page 31



Oxfordshire Strategic Transport Forum 
 
 
Purpose and Remit 
 
To provide a strategic oversight and coordinated input to Oxfordshire’s strategic transport 
planning, policy and infrastructure development, advising how this enables and supports 
inclusive connectivity and clean growth across Oxfordshire (in particular the Oxfordshire 
Housing & Growth Deal) in the context of the wider Oxford to Cambridge Arc and England’s 
Economic Heartland (EEH) area.   
 
The Group’s main objectives are: 
 

1. Act as a strategic sounding board, providing rigorous advice, recommendations and 

challenge to decision making bodies on strategic transport opportunities, solutions and 

agreeing priorities for funding and delivery which will have a demonstrable, positive 

impact on Oxfordshire’s priority outcomes; 

 

2. Provide ‘cross mode’ advice on strategy development/approval, and investment and 
decisions including Oxfordshire Plan 2050, Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy (OxIS) 
and Local Transport & Connectivity Plan (LTCP) outcomes, objectives and priorities  
 

3. Work with Government, the Oxford to Cambridge Arc, EEH (as the emerging sub-

national transport body) and stakeholders on transport or other infrastructure 

schemes, funding opportunities and other proposals, including putting forward 

opportunities and bids.   

 
4. Promote innovation, forward looking projects and new initiatives, to ensure 

Oxfordshire remains at the forefront of technology and smart working;  

 

 

Specific Responsibilities of the Group to include: 
 
1. Provide a strategic steer on the update of the Oxfordshire LTCP and its component 

strategies 
 

2. Provide a strategic, integrated cross mode input into the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 (Joint 
Statutory Spatial Plan) and District Council Local Plan development  
 

3. Act as a strategic, cross-mode sounding board and consultee on specific transport and 
related projects and initiatives, including: Transport Congestion Management, Ultra 
Low / Zero Emissions Zone(s), the Strategic Active Travel Network, the Oxford to 
Cambridge Expressway and the Strategic Public Transport Network (covering Rail, 
Rapid Transit and Bus) 

 
4. Provide input to support the prioritisation of schemes and projects, for example for the 

Housing & Growth Deal and Housing & Infrastructure Fund processes and updates of 
the OxIS. 

 
5. Promote and showcase Oxfordshire Transport and wider infrastructure connectivity 

proposals and opportunities, for example via an Annual Conference  
 

6. Provide coordinated input to responses on national and local consultations on strategic 
transport or planning policies and proposals 

Page 32



Governance 
 
1. Meetings to be held every 2 months, ahead of scheduled Oxfordshire Growth Board 

meetings, supported by virtual or ad-hoc discussions as required, e.g. to meet specific 
deadlines 
 

2. Chairman to be appointed annually (for 2019/20, it is proposed to continue with the 
current Chairman) 
 

3. To be organised and facilitated by Oxfordshire County Council as Highways Authority 
and hosted on an agreed, rotational basis by Group Members 
  

4. All Group recommendations to be agreed by consensus, reflecting any differences of 
views 

 
5. All recommendations and feedback to be programmed into the decision-making cycle 

for the Oxfordshire Growth Board, Oxfordshire LEP Board, County Council Cabinet 
and other decision-making forums as required 

 
 
Proposed Membership Organisations (assumption is one representative for each) 
 

• Oxfordshire County Council (Officer and Member) 
 

• Oxfordshire City & District Councils – Transport and/or Economic Development 
 

• Oxfordshire LEP 
 

• Oxfordshire Cycle Network 
 

• Network Rail 
 

• Oxfordshire Rail Operators 
 

• Oxfordshire’s Principal Bus Operators 
 

• Highways England 
 

• Freight Transport Association (or equivalent body) 
 

 
 
NB: Terms of reference will be reviewed on an annual basis.  
 
 
August 2019 
 

Page 33



www.OxfordshireGrowthBoard.org 

To: Oxfordshire Growth Board

Title of Report: Oxford to Cambridge Arc – Update 

Date: 22 September 2020

Report of Bev Hindle, Growth Board Director 

Status: Open 

Recent Arc Leadership Group Meetings

1. At its meeting of 31 July, the Arc Leadership Group:
 Agreed Councillor Barry Wood should continue as Chair of the Arc Leadership 

Group and Executive (Yvonne Rees will now be the Chair of the Arc Chief 
Executives Group)

 Considered an update on the joint LEP work across the Arc looking at Economic 
Recovery

 Noted the progress made to date on the Arc Economic Prospectus
 Received a presentation and update on the Arc Local Natural Capital Plan work 

led by DEFRA (on the Growth Board’s agenda for 22 September)
 Heard an update from MHCLG on Arc-related Government work and specifically 

on the progress being made to initiating a spatial framework for the Arc
 Agreed to seek the recruitment of a full-time Director to develop and lead the 

work programme of the Arc Leadership Groups – appointment to be made by 
end of September

2. At an extraordinary meeting on 07 August, the Arc Leadership Group Executive:
 Heard an update on the Arc Economic Prospectus 

3. At its meeting of 07 September, the Arc Leadership Group Executive will:
 consider a first initial draft of the Arc Economic Prospectus

Executive Summary and Purpose:

The purpose of this report is to update the Growth Board on the current work being 
undertaken relating to the Oxford to Cambridge Arc. There are currently three main areas of 
priority collaboration: Arc Recovery Strategy, Arc Economic Prospectus and the Arc Spatial 
Framework.  This report updates on progress across these three priority areas.

  
Recommendations:

1. That the Growth Board notes the report for information.

Page 34

Agenda Item 8



 receive an update on Government’s progress and timeline for the Arc Spatial 
Framework (this will be updated following the meeting to summarise what Arc 
Executive meeting included)

4. There is a further extraordinary meeting of the Arc Leadership Group Executive on 25 
September where they will be asked to agree the submission of the Arc Economic 
Prospectus for Government consideration as part of the Comprehensive Spending 
Review.

5. More specific update information is highlighted on the Prospectus and the Spatial 
Framework below.

Arc Economic Prospectus

6. Hatch Regeneris have been retained to help a lead officer group develop the Arc 
Economic Prospectus.  Initial work has included:

 identifying key documents and source material to call on and reference in the 
prospectus

 review of, and update to, our economic vision (particularly in light of the progress 
we have made on Green Arc principles) and to develop a structure and format 
for the Prospectus

 development of a structure and format for the prospectus

7. Building on the initial feedback from the Arc Executive on 07 August, the current work is 
focussing on firming up a structure for the submission and developing:

 our key sector strengths narrative building on work done in developing the joint 
Arc Local Industrial Strategy approach

 bringing the voices of academia and business to help us tell the story of success 
in the Arc, also outlining what they need for success to continue

 refining specific proposals, investment opportunities and ideas that we want 
Government to invest in including:

i. critical connectivity infrastructure to support our communities
ii. skills, innovation and research 
iii. providing certainty and confidence through committed and distinct Arc 

investment pots
iv. capacity of our local stakeholder teams to help to deliver the shared 

sustainable development outcomes we are insisting on.

Arc Spatial Framework

8. Government announced in the Spring budget that it intended to complete a spatial 
framework for the Arc.  We have yet to see the detail or brief for this work, but believe it 
will provide a high-level spatial strategy (non-statutory) for the Arc, identifying:

 The shared objectives and outcomes we seek for the Arc
 A clear evidence base to justify the level of strategic growth that needs to be 

planned for the Arc and how that gets delivered most sustainably
 A strategy for where the growth and investment to support that growth is best 

placed across the Arc

9. The Government has also committed to a full public engagement exercise to run in 
parallel with the development of the Framework.  We anticipate this to begin in the 
autumn, October at the earliest.  We do expect Government to engage with Local 
Authorities on the nature of the Framework, how it will be developed and the relationship 
it will have with Local Plans – we have been advised this may start as early as 
September.

Page 35



Financial Implications 

1. There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.  

Legal Implications

2. There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.

Background Papers

3.None.

Report Author: Bev Hindle, Oxfordshire Growth Board Director 

Contact information: bev.hindle@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Page 36

mailto:bev.hindle@oxfordshire.gov.uk


www.OxfordshireGrowthBoard.org 

To: Oxfordshire Growth Board

Title of Report: England’s Economic Heartland Draft Transport Strategy

Date: 22 September 2020

Report of Bev Hindle, Growth Board Director 

Status: Open 

England’s Economic Heartland Draft Transport Strategy

1. England’s Economic Heartland (EEH) is the ‘emerging’ Sub-national Transport 
Body (STB) for the area stretching from Swindon to Cambridgeshire. It includes 
the Oxford to Cambridge Arc area but extends to also include Swindon and 
Hertfordshire.

2. EEH is currently consulting on its Draft Transport Strategy.  Preparing and 
agreeing such a Strategy is part of the process of becoming a formal STB.  The 
deadline for any comment is 06 October.  A summary of the Strategy is provided 
at Annex 1.

Executive Summary and Purpose:

The purpose of this report is to seek support from the Oxfordshire Growth Board to 
submit comments to England’s Economic Heartland on its consultation on the 
emerging Draft Transport Strategy.  These comments reflect matters of a strategic 
nature and do not prejudice any specific comments made on the Strategy by any of 
our members.  
  
Recommendations:

1) That the Growth Board discusses the draft comments provided in Annex 2 to 
this report and offers any suggested changes to these comments to be 
incorporated before submission; and,

2) That the Oxfordshire Growth Board agrees that Annex 2, noting any agreed 
changes to be made, is signed off and submitted by the Chair of the Growth 
Board.

Appendices: 
Appendix 1: EEH Draft Transport Strategy Summary 
Appendix 2: Draft Growth Board submission to the consultation
Appendix 3: Letter from Baroness Vere

Page 37

Agenda Item 9



3. While typically, strategic transport matters are handled by Oxfordshire County 
Council, and we anticipate the County Council will be making its own response 
(not yet available to share at time of writing this report), the Executive Officers 
Group of the Growth Board feels there is merit in developing a strategic response 
from the Growth Board.  Specifically, as the nature and extent of the Strategy 
impacts Growth Board programmes (Oxfordshire Plan 2050, Oxfordshire 
Infrastructure Strategy, etc.), it is felt appropriate for the Oxfordshire Growth Board 
to submit a specific response to the consultation.  This is meant to compliment but 
in no way prejudices comments made by any of our members.

4. The Oxfordshire Growth Board has a designated seat as a member of EEH as 
does the County Council and Cherwell District Council (as an invited District 
Council representative).  We are anticipating separate responses to this one from 
the County and Cherwell Councils.

Areas of Comment

5. In general, and as a strategic partnership response, there are two main areas of 
the consultation that we are focussing on in our proposed submission at Annex 2: 
the proposal to establish a statutory sub-national transport body; and, the Strategy 
itself. 

6. On the former, Annex 1 sets out some concerns about the transition to a statutory 
body and the nature and language of the Strategy itself.  Attached at Annex 3 is a 
letter from Baroness Vere setting out Government’s view of the proposal for EEH 
to become a statutory body.  In it she welcomes the work of EEH but makes clear 
Government are not looking to create any more statutory bodies at this time.  This 
creates some confusion and lack of clarity as to what the status will be for EEH 
and therefore what the status of the Strategy will be going forward.  This also 
raises a long-standing question about the relationship between EEH and the Arc, 
something the Growth Board may wish to seek more clarity on through its 
response.

7. On the latter, there are several areas of the Strategy which we are suggesting 
comments on:
 The inconsistency between the summary and the main strategy with respect to 

the regard given to the Oxford to Cambridge Arc
 The need to ensure this strategy is aligned with the emerging Government Arc 

Spatial Framework and our own emerging Oxfordshire Plan 2050
 The language used in the Strategy is more akin to guidance and intent, rather 

than policy
 Support for the evidence developed and principles underlying the Strategy, but 

a challenge to the vision to be bolder in its ambition for fundamental changes 
needed to the transport system in response to climate change and the impacts 
of COVID-19

 Concerns around the delineation or non-delineation of some of our 
communities and major economic hubs and the way in which the Strategy 
characterises these places

 Concern about the lack of recognition for most of the western flank of the 
county, about the relationship of this Strategy with areas on the edge of the 
Strategy boundary and concern about a lack of visible infrastructure priority 
given to major areas of concern such as the A34 and major rail investment 
beyond East-West Rail.

Page 38



8. The Board is asked to consider the comments in Annex 2 and endorse these 
for submission by the Chair on behalf of the Board.  Any agreed amendments 
to the proposed comments will be made and agreed with the Chair prior to 
submission.

Financial Implications 

9.  There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  

Legal Implications

10.There are no legal implications arising directly from this report albeit we do 
want clarity of the legal/statutory footing of EEH so that we can fully understand 
the nature of the Strategy and its relative weight and impact on Oxfordshire 
plans and strategies in the future.

Background Papers

11. None.

Report Author: Bev Hindle, Oxfordshire Growth Board Director 

Contact information: bev.hindle@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Page 39

mailto:bev.hindle@oxfordshire.gov.uk


xLEP
driving economic growth

Draft Transport 
Strategy 
Summary

Page 40



– 3 –– 2 –

The Heartland is an economic success story and vital asset for the 
UK in its economic recovery and the decades which follow…

…founded on science and technology innovation, 
powered by world-leading universities…

…which we will harness to develop new solutions that will 
decarbonise our transport system….

…while championing investment in digital infrastructure to reduce 
the need to travel, transforming public transport and promoting 

active travel…

…increasing opportunities for our residents, supporting a green 
recovery and sustainable growth, and ensuring that our freight and 
logistics needs are met while lowering their environmental impact

AN ECONOMIC SUCCESS STORY AT THE HEART OF THE 
UK’S ECONOMIC RECOVERY AND LONG‑TERM FUTURE

England’s Economic Heartland brings together the 
region’s Local Transport Authorities in a strategic 
partnership that works with the region’s local 
enterprise partnerships to provide leadership 
on strategic  infrastructure.

The Heartland is an economic success 
story founded on science and technology 
innovation, powered by a network 
of world‑leading universities and research 
centres, and includes the Oxford‑Cambridge 
Arc, which has been made a national priority 
by Government . It is a net contributor 
to the Treasury and is a vital asset for 
the UK, both during its recovery from 
the COVID‑19 crisis and in the decades 
that follow.

But the Heartland’s success cannot be taken for granted 

‑ just as a business requires continual investment to flourish, 

so too does our region.

A REGION OF OPPORTUNITY
Our region’s strengths provide the opportunity to do things 

differently, as articulated in the Transport Strategy’s vision:

“To realise sustainable growth opportunities and improve 

the quality of life and wellbeing for Heartland residents 

and businesses, by harnessing the region’s globally 

renowned centres of innovation to unlock a world class, 

de‑carbonised transport system.”

Central to our strategy is putting the needs of the user 

at the heart of all that we do.

Improving connectivity for people and places to services and 

opportunities is crucial to levelling up across our region. And it 

supports economic recovery by helping to improve productivity.

As our experience during the COVID‑19 pandemic has shown, there 

is considerable scope to increase our use of flexible and remote 

working; to challenge received wisdom when it comes to the future 

for our transport system; to do things differently.

SWINDON

OXFORDSHIRE

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE

NORTHAMPTONSHIRE

BEDFORD

CENTRAL
BEDFORDSHIRE

LUTON

HERTFORDSHIRE

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

PETERBOROUGH

MILTON
KEYNES

CO2

CO2

CO2 CO2 CO2 CO2CO2 CO2

CO2

P
age 41



– 5 –– 4 –

A STEP-CHANGE IN APPROACH
‘Business as usual’ will not get us where we need to be, which 

is why our Transport Strategy maps out the additional actions 

needed to achieve our vision.

A step‑change in approach is required to address the challenges 

our transport system already faces ‑ and is all the more 

critical if we are to realise our economic potential and deliver 

sustainable growth.

The strategy sets out how the region will:

• Use the need to decarbonise our transport system as the 

opportunity to harness innovation and deliver solutions that 

in themselves generate economic growth

• Champion investment in digital infrastructure as a means of 

improving connectivity, particularly within our rural communities, 

in order to reduce the need to travel

• Use delivery of East West Rail as the catalyst for the 

transformation of our strategic public transport networks, 

investing in those networks to connect our economic assets and 

communities in a shared endeavour that unlocks added value

• Champion increased investment in active travel and shared 

transport solutions to improve local connectivity and ensure 

that everyone has the opportunity to realise their potential

• Ensure that our freight and logistic needs continue to be met 

whilst lowering the environmental impact of their delivery.

In this way our Transport Strategy sets out how we are responding 

to the need to:

• Improve the resilience of a transport system already under 

strain, one where unreliability and congestion act as a brake 

on sustainable growth

• Reduce our transport system’s carbon emissions, which are 

higher and growing faster than the national average

• Address the inequalities which exist within our region 

by improving connectivity to opportunities for those in 

our more deprived communities

• Support our rural communities and the businesses that 

operate in them, a demographic which is significantly larger 

than the national average

• Reduce reliance on the private car in a region where average 

journeys are longer and car use is higher than the national 

average.

Through our programme of connectivity studies we will work 

with our partners to ensure our investment requirements enable 

the delivery of sustainable growth.

And through our investment pipeline, we will ensure that the 

region’s requirements are clearly set out, giving greater confidence 

to both public and private investors..

A REGION OF AMBITION
The step‑change in approach underpinning our strategy reflects 

the ambition of our region. Engagement on our Outline Transport 

Strategy last year highlighted the region’s desire for EEH to bold, 

and to view the Heartland’s strength in science and technological 

innovation as the opportunity to deliver new solutions which 

improve connectivity and achieve net environmental gain.

The strategy’s bold policies create the framework for harnessing 

the opportunities in our region and overcoming the challenges 

facing our transport system. They are shaped by four overarching 

principles:

• Achieving net‑zero carbon emissions from transport no later 

than 2050

• Improving quality of life and wellbeing through an inclusive 

transport system accessible to all which emphasises sustainable 

and active travel

• Supporting the regional economy by connecting people 

and businesses to markets and opportunities

• Ensuring the Heartland works for the UK by enabling the 

efficient movement of people and goods through the region 

and to/from international gateways.

The strategy’s development has been shaped by an Integrated 

Sustainability Appraisal (ISA), an independent process that 

ensures our policies have been tested against the need to address 

social, environmental and economic needs.

Our Transport Strategy is bold in its ambition, and sets out the 

need for change. Whilst there is much that can be achieved as 

a collaborative strategic partnership, we believe that given the 

importance of delivering the strategy, the region is best served 

by EEH seeking to turn the partnership into a statutory body, 

ensuring our region’s voice shapes the national agenda to the 

benefit of our communities and businesses.

CONSULTATION
England’s Economic Heartland has now launched a formal public 

consultation on the Draft Transport Strategy,  which runs until 

midnight on October 6. The consultation also invites feedback on 

the ISA and plans for statutory status.

Our website contains all the information that has been used 

to shape the strategy, as well as documents and videos explaining 

our proposals in more detail. The consultation is your chance 

to shape the final version of our Transport Strategy via the online 

survey at englandseconomicheartland.com.

The final version of the Transport Strategy will be published 

at the turn of the year.

P
age 42

http://www.englandseconomicheartland.com/Pages/transport-strategyconsult.aspx


– 7 –– 6 –

 Map created for Illustrative purposes only.

M45M45

A45A45

A425A425
A4

23
A4

23

A422
A422

A429A429

M
40

M
40

M1M1

A6A6

A6A6

A14A14

A43A43

A5
09

A5
09

A605
A605

A47A47

A427A427

A14A14

A14A14

A142A142

A45A45

A
45

A
45

A428A428

A1
41

A1
41

A141A141

A11A11

A11A11

A1307A1307

A1(M
)

A1(M
)

A4
3

A4
3

A3
4

A3
4A420

A420

A40A40

A44A44

M4M4

A4
04

A4
04

A41A41

A41A41

A421A421

A428A428

M
1

M
1

A50
5

A50
5

A602A602

A505
A505

A414A414

M11M11

A1 (M)A1 (M)

A1A1M
40

M
40

A418A418

A416A416 A505A505

A508
A508

A5
08

A5
08

A5A5

A5A5

A421A421

A43A43

A1
0

A1
0

A10A10

A1
0

A1
0

A414
A414

A413
A413

A4010
A4010

M25M25

STEVENAGE

HITCHIN
& LGC

HARLOW

COLCHESTER

CHELMSFORD 

HAT’D &
WELWYNST

ALBANSHEMEL

LUTON

BEDFORD

W’BOROUGH

KETTERING

CORBY

P’BOROUGH

LEICESTER

RUGBYCOVENTRY

WORCESTER

WATFORD

AYLESBURY

WYCOMBE
DIDCOT

READING

OXFORD

GLOUCESTER

BRISTOL

CHELTENHAM

SWINDON

NORWICH

IPSWICH

BIRMINGHAM

NORTHAMPTON

MILTON
KEYNES

CAMBRIDGE

LONDON

H REGIS
BICESTER

BANBURY

//  Investment Pipeline

CS

1

2
SI

SI

SI

SI

LC

SI

MT

SI

SI

MT

Electrification of the rail 
infrastructure (region‑wide) 
• Extension of Midland Main Line 

electrification 

• Delivery of East West Rail – Western and 
Central Sections 

• Delivery of a long‑term solution for the 
electrification of the Chiltern Main Line 

Digital Infrastructure provision 
– 5G and fibre connectivity 
(region‑wide)
Provision of digital infrastructure delivers 
opportunities for business transformation, 
new business models to emerge – immediate 
opportunities:

• Delivery of East West Rail – 
Western and Central Section  

Electrification of road 
infrastructure (region‑wide)
Investment in charging facilities required 
to support decarbonisation of vehicle fleet 
– significance increased by banning of new 
petrol, diesel and hybrid vehicles from 2035

Enhanced capacity for rail freight
Four strategic corridors serve/cross 
the region:

• Felixstowe to Nuneaton 

• East West Railway    

• Southampton to West Midlands 

Three strategic corridors are important in 
terms of providing access for construction 
materials

• Midland Main Line 

• Great Western Main Line 

Improved connectivity (east west) 
– northern
Opportunities for improved connectivity 
by rail:

• A northern arc connecting Northampton, 
Corby to Peterborough/Cambridge 

Improved connectivity (east west) 
– middle
Realisation of East West Rail’s full capability – 
this will require:

• Delivery of East West Rail – 
Western Section as planned represents 
minimum scheme 

• Delivery of East West Rail – Central Section 

• CS   Delivery of Cambridge South Station

• Delivery of Eastern Section (with linkages 
to Norwich and Ipswich)  

Improved connectivity (east west) 
– southern
Opportunities for improved connectivity 
by rail:

• A southern arc connecting central 
Buckinghamshire, Watford and southern 
Hertfordshire  

Improved connectivity 
(north south) – western
Enhanced rail connectivity between West 
Midlands – Oxford/Didcot – and onwards to 
Southampton 

Enhanced rail connectivity between 
London‑Luton‑Bedford‑East Midlands 

Improved connectivity 
(north‑south) – central
HS2 Released Capacity is the catalyst for 
enhanced regional connectivity. For example, 
linking Northampton – Milton .Keynes/
Bletchley– Aylesbury – High Wycombe – Old 
Oak Common     and improved inter/
intra‑regional connectivity on the MML 

Improved connectivity 
(north‑south) eastern
Enhanced connectivity on the Midland Main 
Line – to include as a minimum restoration of 
services previously removed 

WX   Supporting options for a new railway 
station at Wixams to support planned 
growth

SI   Strategic Interchanges – delivery of 
East West Rail creates opportunities for 
strategic interchange with traditional 
main‑lines (with London termini): these 
interchanges offer both transport and 
economic opportunities

• Oxford – with Great Western and 
Cross Country

• Bicester Village – with Chiltern Mainline

• Aylesbury – with Chiltern Mainline

• Milton Keynes/Bletchley – with West Coast 
Main Line

• Bedford – with Midland Main Line

• Sandy/St Neots area – with East Coast 
Main Line

• Cambridge/Cambridge South – with Anglian 
Main Line

MT   Mass Transit Systems
• Cambridge – the CAM

• Milton Keynes – Mass Rapid Transit

• The A414 corridor in Hertfordshire

Access to Strategic Gateways
  Improved connectivity by public 
transport

• Heathrow Airport: through Northampton – 
Milton Keynes/Bletchley – Aylesbury – High 
Wycombe – Old Oak Common: and through 
Western Rail Access to Heathrow

• Luton Airport – through enhanced services 
on Midland Main Line

Step Change in Local Connectivity
LC   Use pilot initiatives to work with partners 

to identify where the investment in 
strategic infrastructure offers the 
opportunity to effect significant change 
in local connectivity:

• Aylesbury – linked with East West Rail, 
Garden Town and Enterprise Zone

• Marston Vale – linked with East West Rail

• Support the delivery of a high quality 
cycleway (the Varsity Way) to form the 
backbone of a strategic cycleway across 
the region. 

Area/Corridor Studies 
(connectivity studies)
Please see separate map overleaf

Targeted investment in the 
highway network, as part of 
a system approach
Investment, where required, in the Strategic 
Road Network (SRN) and the Major Road 
Network (MRN) to support all road users and 
future proof the network.

Support the delivery of investment in the 
Strategic Road Network (as outlined in the 
Road Investment Strategy 2)

• 1   A47 Wansford to Sutton

• 2   Delivery of A428 Black Cat to Caxton 
Gibbet improvements

• 3   A5 Towcester Relief Road 

• 4   Upgrade to Junction 25 of the M25

Support scheme development of RIS 3 
pipeline schemes:

• 5   M11 Junction 13 Cambridge West

• 6   M40/A404 Junction 4 High Wycombe

• Delivering a long‑term solution to the 
challenges of the A1 (East of England) 
corridor. 

WX

MT

LC

KEY 

Road

Rail

Midland Mainline

East West Rail Western Section

East West Rail Central Section

East West Rail Eastern Section

Chiltern Mainline

Felixstowe to Nuneaton

Southampton to West Midlands

West Coast Mainline

Great Western Mainline

A1 (East of England)

3

4

5

6

// Investment pipeline
Map for illustrative purposes only.

P
age 43



– 9 –– 8 –

// Connectivity Studies

For illustrative purposes only. The boundaries of the connectivity studies are not 
currently fixed and will be decided in due course after consultation with our partners.

A

B C

D

E

F

G

H

I

//  Connectivity Studies

KEY 

(London) – Buckinghamshire - MK - Northampton

Peterborough - Northampton - Oxford

Luton - Milton Keynes - Daventry

Swindon - Oxford - Didcot

Watford - Aylesbury - Bicester - M40

North Northamptonshire

Oxford - M40 junctions

Luton - Bedford - Northamptonshire

Northampton - Milton Keynes

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

Map for illustrative purposes only.

P
age 44



Get in touch
  England’s Economic Heartland Strategic Alliance 

EEH Business Unit 

c/o Buckinghamshire Council 

Walton Street 

Aylesbury 

HP20 1UA

For general enquiries please contact 01296 382703  

or email englandseconomicheartland@buckscc.gov.uk

 www.englandseconomicheartland.com

Sign up for our newsletter – just scroll to the bottom of our homepage

 @EconomicHeart
Page 45



ANNEX 2

ENGLANDS ECONOMIC HEARTLAND DRAFT TRANSPORT STRATGEY
OXFORDSHIRE GROWTH BOARD COMMENTS

22 September 2020

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to comment on the Draft Transport Strategy.  

Statutory Body
Whilst we support appropriate and consensus driven strategies, the Oxfordshire 
Growth Board is not clear about the nature of the strategy as it emerges or once it is 
completed.  We note proposals accompanying the strategy which look to put EEH on 
a statutory footing and therefore understand the intent would be the strategy itself 
could become a statutory plan.  However, the recent letter from Baroness Vere and 
Simon Clark (attached) suggests Government is not, at least at this time, looking to 
establish any further statutory bodies, including EEH.  

Our comments therefore are based on the strategy emerging on a non-statutory 
footing (our preference). We would like it registered though that if there were moves 
to put this on a statutory footing, we would have many questions about the nature, 
impact and the appropriate language of the strategy and would want to be assured 
that, notwithstanding the views of any of our individual councils, that statutory 
responsibility for strategic and local transport planning, scheme development, 
funding and delivery were not removed from Oxfordshire-based authorities and not  
placed in a quasi-regional transport body.  

General Comments
The strategy reads as a growth vision rather than as a transport strategy.  This is 
understandable as the connection between a spatial strategy (i.e. where things are 
and how the inter-relate) and the connectivity needed to make a spatial strategy 
work is fundamental.  However, the transport strategy should not lead the spatial 
strategy for either the region or Oxfordshire.

The Oxford to Cambridge Arc, which makes up the vast majority of the EEH area, 
has been identified as an area of national economic significance by Government.  
Given this commitment, the Growth Board believes it would be sensible to consider 
greater organisational alignment between EEH and the emerging Arc structures to 
ensure better join up and better value of public expenditure.  There will always be an 
edge or a boundary to our joint working, and we would see working closely with 
Swindon and the West (indeed others outside of EEH such as Berkshire) as a 
priority regardless of artificial administrative boundaries. 

The Arc will also be subject to an emerging Spatial Framework led by Government.  
It is fundamental to its success that any regional transport strategy is developed in 

Page 46



an iterative way within that Framework.  In our view the work done to date provides 
very useful evidence for the development of the Framework, but it should not be 
treated as a final strategy until such time as we can see that it responds to the 
spatial strategy emerging for the Arc. 

Further, we are developing the Oxfordshire Plan 2050.  This is a statutory joint 
spatial plan and we are at a critical stage of determining our preferred spatial 
strategy.  The work of the EEH Transport Strategy is helpful again as evidence but 
must not hinder or prohibit the determination locally of our most preferred approach.  
For example, while we see there is clear and important ambition in the EEH 
Strategy, the document and its proposals do not really give confidence that we are 
changing fast enough to meet our carbon ambition by 2050.  We would suggest that 
with our strengths of innovation, combined with our economic capabilities, we should 
be exceeding national targets for zero carbon.  In this respect we feel the Transport 
Strategy should be more bold, ambitious and specific about how this can then be 
achieved.

We are disappointed the Strategy does not seem to start at a premise to avoid 
infrastructure.  There is helpful wording to support better digital connectivity but 
wonder if this is the right place for that discussion and if so, have all players in that 
sector contributed enough to the strategy. We think if there is a stronger commitment 
to carbon zero and more ambitious targets to attain this then it would lead to a 
strategy that sought to avoid new and traditional forms of infrastructure through other 
means such as integrated strategic planning, digital connectivity and greater 
community resilience to avoid reliance on longer and perhaps unnecessary journeys.

We agree with Baroness Vere that really good work has been undertaken by EEH in 
developing the strategy, but we are reassured that the issue of placing this Strategy, 
and EEH in general on a statutory footing is at best premature and at this time not 
supported.  We feel this should be seen as a positive position as the nature of the 
Strategy, and of those impacted most by it, should be one of consensus and 
collaboration, not of policy and statutory power.  

If EEH embraces this then we feel the strategy can evolve alongside the Arc Spatial 
Framework to deliver our shared ambition for the Arc and for Oxfordshire.  If the 
Strategy was to continue as a policy-making document, then we feel it is not written 
in such a way as to be successful or defensible.  In general, the wording and nature 
of the “policies” within the draft are not written as policy but rather as directions of 
travel, statement of intent and support for collaboration.  Again, we support this 
approach as it is right if it is to be a consensus building strategy rather than a 
statutory and binding policy document.  If EEH intention is for the latter, the 
Oxfordshire Growth Board would have serious concerns about such a strategy 
moving forward.  

The summary document is very good, and we feel addresses our biggest challenges 
and opportunities related to connectivity moving forward.  It also helpfully 
acknowledges the importance of the Oxford to Cambridge Arc.  Unfortunately, this is 
not representative of the Strategy as a whole and seems to have been written on its 
own and not as a summary of the main document which gives very little mention of 
the significance of the Arc to the national economy, how important connectivity is to 

Page 47



its success and the role this strategy can play in helping the Arc meet and exceed its 
potential of delivering nationally significant sustainable development whilst 
supporting our communities and businesses to address our biggest challenges 
around climate change, social inclusion and clean and sustainable living. 

The Strategy rightly focusses on greater connectivity across the region.  However, 
given the potential demise of the Expressway project, there seems an excellent 
opportunity missed by this Strategy to come up with alternative strategies to address 
our continued and growing connectivity issues.  We note the Connectivity Strategies, 
which have been pending for some time, and will work with Oxfordshire County 
Council to assist these being completed as soon as possible.  However, we must 
emphasise that in addition to new or improved east-west connectivity, north-south 
connections such as the A34 remain a major constraint on local, regional and 
national movements of people and freight.  We cannot see where this major corridor 
is a priority to EEH – perhaps it was assumed as a Highways Agency highway it 
would be picked up as part of future expressway or RIS investment – however, we 
wish EEH not to assume this and elevate its significance to ensure it is made safe, 
providing appropriate capacity to support our communities now and in future.

In addition to the A34, we would like to see greater support for investment in the 
wider major road network for Oxfordshire, including the A420 corridor supporting the 
strong linkage between the Arc, Oxfordshire and Swindon and the Western 
Gateway.  We are also concerned not to see Didcot recognised as a strategic 
interchange given its importance as a rail hub and area of significant employment 
and housing growth.  Lastly there seems to be no recognition of the strategically 
important links west along both the A40 and A44 corridors – almost completely 
ignoring the western flank of the Arc, Oxfordshire and the EEH area.  This misses 
the importance of areas of development at Eynsham, Witney and the significant 
national infrastructure asset at Brize Norton for example.

More generally, once agreed the Strategy should be written as guidance, we would 
suggest taking the opportunity to be more succinct. Its length takes focus away from 
really positive direction, guidance and evidence.

Specific Comments
Vision
The vision statement is more of a neutral attempt to be everything to all things – and 
really misses what the vision for transport specifically is in the Arc.  We do believe 
the key principles though are strong and could be used to develop a more robust and 
ambitious transport vision for the region.

Strategic Importance
Inherently it is difficult to show proper comparisons across such a large and varied 
region.  But we do not understand the basis for the table on pages 22 and 23. The 
language though on page 23 reads more like a spatial strategy and while we agree 
these matters are very much inter-related, as we have said above, we feel this 
integration should be between this document and the emerging spatial framework for 
the Arc and not left to a transport strategy introducing a spatial strategy by default or 
by stealth as it might appear.

Page 48



Focussing on Oxfordshire, it is not really clear why Banbury is a regionally significant 
hub but not an area of economic opportunity; or why Bicester would not be a regional 
hub or Oxford an area of economic opportunity; or why Westcott features but not 
Culham, Harwell or Begbroke which are internationally significant?  There are many 
more examples and we would suggest that this perhaps does not add value in its 
current form and needs rethinking. We have similar concerns around the map on 
pages 24 and 25.

Policy 12
The introduction of terminology like a northern and southern arc are confusing and it 
is not clear where that has come from.  If it is based on evidence, then why are we 
not seeing the infrastructure need highlighted already in advance of the Connectivity 
Studies. These designations seem premature to a spatial strategy and connectivity 
study evidence base.  If these start to represent alternatives to the Expressway, then 
that should be made clear as we understand both Government and the public would 
like clarity on what EEH has to say about this.

Policy 23
This reads like, “…if we build it then they will come…”.  This exemplifies our concern 
with such a strategy coming directly in advance of a spatial strategy for the Arc and 
for Oxfordshire as a much wider set of criteria need to be considered in determining 
how future growth should be best directed and delivered – then look at the most 
suitable infrastructure needed to support that approach, not fix a movement system 
and then build to it.  This feels even more poorly timed given the societal changes in 
demand we are witnessing over the past 18 months in response to climate change 
and now to COVID-19. We understand the Strategy pre-dated COVID-19 but it must 
be reviewed and take account of evidence evolving around the extent demand for 
travel will have changed. We believe this policy needs to be removed or substantially 
changed.

Policy 24
It is not clear why Central Oxfordshire is not on this list.  The ambition for mass 
transit serving Oxford City and the surrounding area has been around since 2015 in 
LTP4.  We would also suggest this should include reference to advanced research 
available which looks at solutions which are viable and replicable to several towns 
and cities existing and emerging in the Arc and then exportable to markets beyond 
our region.  Indeed this policy could go much further, or the Strategy benefit from 
additional support for projects such as Connecting Oxford whereby Local Authorities 
are seeking to introduce a Zero Emissions Zone.

The “pipeline” for investment reads as more of a wish list and not really developed as 
an integrated pipeline or programme.  This could be more useful if it built on the 
similar format to the Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy (OxIS) bringing more of a 
programme element to it, providing more information about the critical path to 
delivery, major risks to delivery, who owns delivery, existing and gap funding, etc.

This list at p.60 and 61 really evidences the point that the focus seems to be on the 
middle of the region and really shows how the edges appear to be less significant.  
The list does not reflect what Oxfordshire as a whole has provided for consideration 

Page 49



and should be changed to do so – also staying abreast with the review of our OxIS 
currently underway.  

While it has not been published yet due to COVID-19, EEH are partners in the 
Oxfordshire Rail Corridor Study and the strategy would usefully address some of its 
weaknesses in terms of Oxfordshire by referencing its recommendations and 
recognising the key strategic nature of the Oxford Cordon in its own right not just as 
part of East-West Rail (EWR).  Oxford Station is a national not just regional 
bottleneck and needs major investment to address not only EWR, but the role it 
plays on cross-country services.  This would also highlight the investment 
opportunities to support Cowley Branch Line, the Cotswold Line, major track 
investment, and potential new stations.

Whilst aspirational and hard to argue its merits, we do not understand how the 
Regional Centre of Excellence gets funded, how it is managed and how priorities for 
its attention are agreed.  It is absolutely agreed that we need more capacity and 
capability in the Arc to deliver our ambitions and to meet Government expectations 
for future growth and delivery.  We also endorse growing and developing our own 
but there needs to be much more discussion with a wider set of partners about the 
form, function, viability and options for such a proposal and whether this is a “centre” 
or “network” of excellence building on existing statutory structures across the Arc.

We believe EEH, not unlike our Growth Board in many ways, draws its strength from 
collaboration, evidence building and sharing at scale and networking – it should point 
to changes in direction and provide technical support for realising that direction 
change.  However, it perhaps should stay clear of policy making which is better 
placed with statutory bodies.  Developing strategic thinking, providing evidence and 
support and publishing guidance for Local Transport and Planning authorities is 
welcome and should be the focus in future.

Page 50



 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 August 2020 
 
 
Dear Martin, 
 
I wanted to take this opportunity to provide clarity on the Secretary of State 
for Transport and my expectations for Sub-national Transport Bodies 
(STBs) going forward as well as to confirm your funding allocation for this 
financial year, subject to the terms set out in this letter.  
 
The Secretary of State and I value the role STBs play in developing a long-
term transport strategy for their regions, prioritising transport schemes for 
their area, and bringing a strength of partnership among their membership 
so that they can speak to government with one voice. We appreciate your 
support in delivering our shared objectives to improve transport connectivity 
which supports local economic and housing growth.  
 
Whilst recognising the importance of the work of England’s Economic 
Heartland (EEH) and the strength of collaborative working you have 
developed with your members, I would like to take this opportunity to 
reaffirm that we would not approve any proposals for statutory status. We 
see STBs as partnerships of local authorities, providing a strategic vision 
across the area for the benefit of the whole region. Department for 
Transport funding should be used for delivering that strategic coordination 
function, producing and delivering their Transport Strategy and associated 
Area Studies rather than on lobbying.  
 
I am writing to confirm the grant of £500k to EEH in the financial year 2020-
21 to support the development and delivery of your Transport Strategy and 

Baroness Vere of Norbiton 
Transport Minister for Roads, Buses and Places 
 
Great Minster House 
33 Horseferry Road 
London 
SW1P 4DR 
 
Tel: 0300 330 3000 
E-Mail: baroness.vere@dft.gov.uk 
 
Web site: www.gov.uk/dft 
 

Cllr Martin Tett 
England’s Economic Heartland 
Business Unit 
Buckinghamshire County Council 
Walton Street 
Aylesbury 
HP20 1UA 

Page 51



 

 
 

 

other core STB functions. In line with your draft business plan I am content 
for this funding to be used as follows:  
 

• £250k for policy scenario model   
• £150k Strategic Environmental Assessment of the Transport Strategy 
– which will need to take into account other environmental assessments 
in the Arc to ensure a joined-up approach to effectively inform policy and 
transport scheme development in the Arc from a sustainability 
perspective  
• £100k freight & logistics input to policy scenario model   

Release of funding is subject to EEH satisfactorily evidencing delivery of 
agreed outputs from DfT funding provided to EEH in the previous 
year. Please agree with my officials how EEH will demonstrate that these 
conditions have been satisfactorily met. Given the importance of the 
Transport Strategy we would strongly recommend that funding from other 
sources (local contributions) are prioritised toward finalising the Transport 
Strategy by the end of the year.  

The attached document sets out proposed governance arrangements 
between the Department and EEH with regards to this funding. They are 
intended to be proportionate while ensuring good use of public funds. If you 
are content with these arrangements, please sign and return a copy to my 
officials. My officials will separately provide a Grant Determination Form for 
your accountable Section 151 officer to sign and return, following which the 
funding will be granted under Section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003, 
in the financial year 2020-21. 

I intend to make further funding of up to £400k available in this financial 
year 2020-21. This would be for EEH to act as co-sponsor for the 
connectivity study with Highways England. Further correspondence will 
follow on this. 

EEH’s regional capacity and capability proposal to pool scheme 
development and project delivery expertise at regional level is of interest to 
the Department but not yet sufficiently developed to allocate funding. 
Furthermore, we are exploring options to pilot or roll out such a model 
across the STBs (to improve the quality of infrastructure funding bids and 
longer-term potentially generate efficiency savings in scheme delivery). We 
may therefore wish to draw on your proposals as they develop further. My 
officials will continue to engage with you and the other STBs on this.  

I know you may have some questions on this letter and I would like to be able 
to answer these and properly explain the Secretary of State’s and my vision 

Page 52



 

 
 

 

for the future of STBs. To that end, my officials will be in touch to invite you 
to an STB roundtable in September, which I will host. 

I look forward to being able to speak with you then. 

 

BARONESS VERE OF NORBITON 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



 

 
 

 

Funding and governance agreement 
 
1. Governance 

a. Buckinghamshire Council (formerly Buckinghamshire County Council) will be the 
accountable body for EEH, unless otherwise agreed by EEH and confirmed to the 
Department in writing. 

2. Use of DfT funding  
a. DfT funding may be used for the following purposes:  

o £250k for policy scenario model   
o £150k Strategic Environmental Assessment of the transport strategy – 

which will need to take into account other environmental assessments 
in the Arc to ensure a joined-up approach to effectively inform policy 
and transport scheme development in the Arc from a sustainability 
perspective  

o £100k freight & logistics input to policy scenario model   
b. EEH should confirm to DfT that they have used the funding in line with the 

proposed ask. Should EEH wish to use DfT funding for any purpose other than 
those set out above, they will first set out the proposed amount and rationale to the 
Department in writing, for discussion with the Department.  

3. Programme and risk management  

a. EEH will, by 1 September 2020:  
o Agree their work plan, detailing planned outputs and profiled spend for 

2020-21 (and beyond as appropriate), with DfT; and subsequently 
publish details of this on their website (e.g. in the form of a business 
plan) 

o Agree a suitable approach to internal governance of the STB with DfT; 
o Develop and share a comprehensive risk register with DfT. 

b. EEH and the DfT Sponsorship Team will review spend against plan, outputs, 
related delivery risks and any other issues or opportunities at regular engagement 
meetings with a view to maximising the value for money of STB activity. The DfT 
Sponsorship Team will provide advice and support as appropriate. 

4. Ways of working  
a. DfT and EEH acknowledge the agreed STB operating principles annexed. 
b. DfT and EEH agree to open, honest, timely and frequent communication on all 

areas of work, including but not limited to development of the Transport Strategy 
and associated activity, overarching communications activity, and input to DfT 
programmes such as the Major Road Network. 

c. The DfT Sponsorship Team will provide proportionate strategic advice and 
review, recognising EEH’s status as an independent partnership. EEH will 
consider DfT advice in light of the shared desire for a credible, evidence-based 
strategy that gives due regard to national transport, industrial, housing, 
decarbonisation and other relevant national strategies. 

d. DfT and EEH will agree, where practicable, the analytical methods and outputs for 
the evidence base for the Transport Strategy, recognising final responsibility for 
the outputs of the programme rests with EEH. 

Page 54



 

 
 

 

e. EEH agree to record and share the minutes and actions from:  

• EEH Strategic Transport Forum (STB) 
• EEH Transport Officers Group 

• EEH Alliance Leaders and Chief Executives Group (recognising this body is 
not the STB but feeds into the work of the STB) 

f. In developing their transport strategy, EEH will have regard to the Public Sector 
Equality Duty as if they were a local authority.   

g. EEH will work with other STBs as part of the STB liaison group to ensure 
consistency and avoid duplication of work between STBs wherever possible.  

h. Working alongside other groupings in the Oxford Cambridge Arc, EEH will 
champion the role of transport in the Arc in line with the joint statement of 
ambition published in spring 2019 by the Government and Arc Leaders’ group, 
supporting and promoting the ambition for the Arc including inputting on transport 
and linking the EEH Transport Strategy into the Spatial Framework for the Arc.   

i. This agreement may be subject to revision following any change to the 
governance of the Oxford Cambridge Arc and/or in light of the developing Spatial 
Framework for the Arc, where this has implications for EEH’s work.  

 
Signed:  
 
Cllr Martin Tett, Chairman, England’s Economic Heartland 
 
 
 
Date:  
 
 
 
Martin Tugwell, Programme Director, England’s Economic Heartland   
 
 
 
Date:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



 

 
 

 

Annex – STB operating principles 
 
The role of STBs is to: 
 

• Provide strategic consideration of transport needs at a pan-regional level aligning 
with economic and industrial strategies for the region 

• Provide advice to Government on prioritisation of schemes at the sub-national 
level 

• Undertake agreed activity on behalf of Government in their region, for example 
connectivity studies 

• Support other Departmental priorities (e.g. MRN) 
 
To be successful STBs will need to: 
 

• Speak with 'one voice' for partners in the region 
• Base all proposals in evidence 
• Operate at a strategic cross-boundary regional level, not replicating the functions 

of local transport authorities 
• Work collaboratively across their region 
• Work collaboratively across the STB community, sharing best practice and 

avoiding duplication 
• Work openly and transparently with Government 
• Be able to take and defend tough decisions 

 
To support STBs DfT will: 
 

• Be transparent, free and frank in its dealings with STBs 
• Take account of STBs’ views in developing national transport policy and 

investment decisions – where STBs have a strong rationale, broad regional scope 
and coherent economic geography, can demonstrate effective prioritisation and 
speak with one voice for the region 

• Recognise that STBs don’t need to be the same in focus or level of ambition – 
STB priorities will reflect those of their region 

• Seek to provide funding certainty wherever possible 
 
 

 
 

Page 56



www.OxfordshireGrowthBoard.org 

To:                          Oxfordshire Growth Board

Title of Report: Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal Progress Report –                
Quarter One Year Three

Date: 22 September 2020

Report of: Bev Hindle, Growth Board Director 

Status: Open 

BACKGROUND- AN AGREED EXTENSION TO THE DEAL

1) The Board will recall that officers reported verbally at the last meeting on 
discussions with Government over potential changes to the terms of the Deal, 
recognising the historic delivery issues we had highlighted previously and the 
impact of the COVID pandemic.

Executive Summary and Purpose:

The purpose of this report is to update the Growth Board on progress at 
Quarter One, Year 3 (2020/21) with the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth 
Deal (the Deal).

The report provides a summary of the following strands of the Deal.
 Infrastructure programme
 Affordable Housing programme
 Oxfordshire Plan 2050.

The fourth strand of the Deal, Productivity is reported through the OXLEP 
Board under separate arrangements.

A summary of the current governance position is also contained in the report.

A separate assurance statement detailing the financial position of the Growth 
Deal will be reported separately by Oxfordshire County Council, as the 
Accountable Body.

 Recommendation:
I. That the Growth Board notes the progress at Quarter 1, 2020/21 towards the 

Housing and Growth Deal.

Appendices: None

Page 57

Agenda Item 10a



Page 2 of 15

2) We highlighted the following key issues as challenges to successful delivery:

 A lack of a mobilisation period across all workstreams- leading to 
delays in being able to deliver the programmes

 Infrastructure delivery delays not anticipated at the outset of the 
programme

 The affordable housing grant rates agreed in the Deal not being 
competitive 

 The challenges of the agreed Oxfordshire Plan timetable, together with 
uncertainties about whether current plan requirements will enable to 
delivery of a sound Plan in Examination.

3) Government recognised these challenges and agreed with Oxfordshire on a set 
of amendments to the terms of the Deal to ensure that the investment of money 
time and energy by both parties would bear fruit where at all possible. These 
amendments are:

 An agreement to extend the infrastructure programme by up to two 
years- where delays mean the scheme will not be delivered within 5 
years- agreement to be a scheme by scheme basis.,

 Agreement that the value of the Deal to aid market recovery should be 
maximised and that a wider set of infrastructure priorities for the Deal 
could be agreed, without losing the focus upon housing delivery being 
consequent upon the infrastructure investment.

 Agreement to extend the current three-year affordable housing 
programme to a fourth year to reflect the delays caused by the COVID 
pandemic- with additional flexibility into a 5th year, on a scheme by 
scheme basis to allow schemes to be completed.

 Agreement that Oxfordshire will have flexibility to exceed the current 
affordable housing grant rates where circumstances require it, within the 
overall targets agreed in the Deal and subject to an agreed value for 
money Framework.

 Agreement that government would consider extensions of timelines to 
the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 to ensure delivery but would require the 
rationale for this and not an open-ended period for delivery- due to the 
knock-on consequences to further Plan-making.

 Agreement to the need for further joint work to ensure that the 2050 
Plan would have the opportunity to perform well in Examination.

4) In agreeing to these revised Oxfordshire Plan proposals however government 
advised that the planning flexibilities granted to Oxfordshire to deliver the 
2050 Plan were enshrined in a ministerial statement and consequently, whilst 
needing to align where possible to a revised timetable, flexing these 
presented a serious challenge and was not likely to be supported. 

Page 58



Page 3 of 15

5) The presentation given by Oxfordshire in support of our proposals and full notes 
of the meeting and are on the Growth Board website

https://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/oxfordshire-housing-growth-
deal-extension/

HOMES FROM INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAMME

6) The Growth Board are aware that the Homes from Infrastructure Programme 
(HfI) is a £150m investment in strategic infrastructure to support the 
acceleration of already planned housing in Oxfordshire over a five-year period 
from 2018/19 to 2022/23. The infrastructure projects include road, rail, cycle 
routes and footpaths, as well as social infrastructure such as schools.

7) The HfI programme has two aspects.

 Firstly, the commitment to spend £30 million per annum on named 
infrastructure projects that have been identified as accelerators for 
planned housing growth in Oxfordshire.

 Secondly that this expenditure will then accelerate 6,549 planned 
homes that might not otherwise have come forward at this pace.

Infrastructure

8) The Growth Board will recall that in the last update officers advised that the 
partners, led by Oxfordshire County Council (OCC), who are the lead delivery 
partner for the infrastructure workstream and deliver the projects through their 
capital projects governance framework and project lifecycle, had embarked 
upon a review of the infrastructure programme in the final quarter of 2019/20  
with the intention of agreeing with government a revised delivery profile and 
associated financial trajectory.

9) This review is attached at appendix one of this report. It offers first a summary 
of the changes by district and a Gantt chart showing the deliverability 
timelines for each infrastructure scheme.

10)The regular review of Infrastructure programmes is part of a normal process 
to ensure that each scheme is updated, and any changes are factored into a 
revised programme and all changes are dealt with in an open and transparent 
manor. 

11)Moving forward we will now use this revised programme to report against in 
detail, both to the Programme Board and Infrastructure Sub-group and 
provide summary information to the Board for endorsement prior to its formal 
approval by the County council.

12)The review of the infrastructure programme has also illustrated the benefits of 
reflecting upon a wider set of priorities than just accelerated housing and the   
deliverability of schemes as influenced by the pandemic. For example, the 
emerging priorities for growth in Oxfordshire developed for the next iteration of 
OxIS, the declared climate change emergencies and the recognition that the 
infrastructure investment is a tool for economic stimulus and housing market 
recovery.

Page 59

https://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/oxfordshire-housing-growth-deal-extension/
https://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/oxfordshire-housing-growth-deal-extension/


Page 4 of 15

13)Accordingly, as agreed with Government officers have been discussion with 
Homes England about how we might apply these wider priorities to any future 
proposed changes to the programme, without losing the key requirement that 
housing should be the consequence of the infrastructure investment. Homes 
England have recognised the merits of a wider approach and discussions are 
ongoing.  

Risk Management

14)The following risks have been identified as the key risks to the infrastructure 
programme:

 The backloading of the infrastructure programme, an issue 
compounded by the pandemic that has led to concerns that some 
schemes may fall outside of the 5-year timeframe of the Deal. 
Consequently, as advised Government has recognised this issue and 
have signalled that they will allow certain infrastructure schemes to 
continue beyond the current 5 years of the Deal- approved on a 
scheme by scheme basis.

 Managing the impact of the infrastructure programme upon the 
Oxfordshire road network- recognising that there are other significant 
infrastructure investment programmes in the same time frame.

 Procurement and market readiness.
 Potential delays due to the need to acquire land through compulsory 

purchase.
 Reliance on third parties (developers / network rail etc) for delivery.
 The continuing impact of the COVID pandemic, for example delays to 

schemes caused by lockdown, interruptions to supply and labour 
chains and the wish of contracts to be renegotiated by infrastructure 
providers to reflect their new operating environment. 

15)Officers have developed risk registers for each infrastructure scheme, 
including appropriate mitigations that are regularly reported to the Programme 
Board to ensure that risk is managed.

Delivering Housing from Infrastructure

16)In the last report to the Board we advised that the completion of the year end 
data for the second year of the deal to March 2020 had been delayed by the 
COVID pandemic.

17)Partners have now completed the exercise and the year end data for the HfI 
programme is as follows

Page 60



Page 5 of 15

18)The Board will note that the trajectory has reduced since we last reported to 
the Board and although remaining above target, is now below the 6549 target, 
when the 20% optimism bias is applied to the expected delivery in the 
remaining years of the programme

19)Looking at the overall housing delivery trajectory for the growth deal period, 
the graph below offers the year end position.

20)In My last report I advised that officers expected that the effect of the COVID 
pandemic would be to delay housing completions and consequently reduce 
the total number of homes accelerated in the Deal as this was time limited. 
Advice from partners is that this has been the case in all districts except 
Oxford and this is reflected in the figures.

21)This impact upon housing acceleration is a key reason why government have 
offered an additional period of time for the completion of the infrastructure to 
allow the full benefits of the schemes on housing acceleration to be realised.

Page 61



Page 6 of 15

22)Officers are in the process of calculating how many homes would be 
accelerated in years 6 and 7 of the infrastructure programme and will report 
on this to the housing advisory subgroup

Risk Management

23)The delivery plans contain the following risks, identified as the key to the 
delivery of homes:

 The pace of infrastructure delivery now heavily influenced by COVID. 
Particularly that identified as crucial to the acceleration of homes and 
the consequent impact on the pace of related housing development.

 Reliance on third parties (developers / network rail etc) for delivery of 
infrastructure.

 The speed of resolution of any planning issues needed to unblock 
sites, this has also been delayed by COVID.

 Potential impact of external market factors and the health of the 
economy.

 The stage and pace of development of some of Oxfordshire’s Local 
Plans.

24)Ongoing analysis of the above risks ensure a comprehensive understanding 
of mitigation activities are planned.

AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAMME (OAHP) 

25)In our last report to the Board I advised that the Affordable Housing 
Programme (OAHP) has also been affected by the COVID crisis with all 
development sites closing as a result of the pandemic. This has led 
Registered Providers reporting significant delays in their delivery trajectories, 
typically between 6-9 months.

26)Recognising the last-minute impact upon the year two programme, 
government agreed to pay the grant for the full programme of 192 units and 
asked the accountable body to hold this money until the district partners 
reported that schemes had achieved the relevant contractual milestone.

27)Of these delayed year two schemes all are progressing and will be completed 
within the current year of the OAHP, as agreed with Homes England. 

28)Regarding the year three programme, officers were requested by government 
to carry out a review and report by the end of May. The outcome of the review 
was that:

 The full three-year programme has been materially reduced by the 
pandemic and now stands at 759 units against the target of 1322 units- 
57% of target.

 Predicted drawdown of budget will be £29.81 million against the full 
budget of £60 million, a drawdown of £49.5% of budget.

29)This review was a material factor in government agreeing to the flexibilities 
detailed earlier in this report.

Page 62



Page 7 of 15

30)Following the agreement of the flexibilities officers from across the partnership 
have begun the process of considering how a fourth year of the programme 
and the ability to flex grant rates to bring affordable homes forward could 
assist us in meeting the targets agreed in the Deal. This work is ongoing and 
is due to be reported to Homes England by early of September. Once this 
revised programme has been finalised and approved by the Housing Advisory 
sub-group. Officers will provide a verbal update at the Board meeting 

Risk Management 

31)The key risks to delivery of individual schemes within the OAHP, are primarily 
from delays in planning and tender processes caused by the COVID crisis 
together with financial challenges to schemes viability These risks are 
managed at district/city level.

32)In addition to these site-specific risks, there are more general risks identified 
for the Programme, these are:

 That the OAHP is not currently large enough to withstand the 
anticipated dropout rate of schemes that typically occurs through the 
programme. Experience to date suggests that up to a third of schemes 
can be delayed in any one year for a variety of reasons, and the OAHP 
needs to have the capacity to allow for such drop out and still deliver to 
target.
 

33)The risks to the OAHP of the anticipated downturn in the economy, slowing 
housing completion rates and thence the affordable units developed. 

OXFORDSHIRE PLAN 2050 

34)Work in quarter one has been focussed on several key areas:
 Launch of the Oxfordshire Open Thought exercise: 

www.oxfordshireopenthought.org to engage organisations and 
individuals in a conversation about the future of the county

 Reviewing the programme and designing new processes and 
procedures in the light of Covid-19 implications 

 Continuing engagement with stakeholders, in particular the Duty to Co-
operate bodies

 Commissioning and progression of technical studies, building the 
evidence base 

 Progressing work in co-ordination with the Liaison and Heads of 
Planning Groups, the steering and working groups of technical expert 
officers and through Sustainability Appraisal 

35)Open Thought is an online platform for the public to have their say on how we 
shape our county as part of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050.  The new Open 
Thought website seeks to promote debate and discussion around the key 
topics of climate change, living and working in the future, and connectivity in 
Oxfordshire.  Several hundred people have so far engaged with the exercise.  
A team of interns from Oxford Brookes University’s School of the Built 
Environment has been recruited to work with the team to help process the 
responses. The team will also begin to analyse the responses to try to extract 

Page 63

http://www.oxfordshireopenthought.org/


Page 8 of 15

innovative and bold policy ideas for the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 and share 
those on the Open Thought website to further the discussion.

36)Since the start of the Covid-19 restrictions, the team has been working hard to 
assess the impact on the overall programme. Many of the consultants 
involved in developing the evidence base have reassured us that much of 
their work can continue with some amendments.  We are working to ensure 
that work on the evidence base incorporates where appropriate consideration 
of the changing economic and social circumstances of the Covid-19 situation 
and any possible longer-term impacts of those.  There are also technical 
limitations when attempting to brief councillors and answer their questions, the 
team are finding new ways to do this remotely. There is also a challenge to 
programme the required officer and member meetings on emerging work 
when meetings will now likely be dominated by the Covid-19 response and 
recovery, limiting consideration of the Plan. 

37)Meetings have been continuing with the Duty to Co-operate bodies (a 
prescribed list of bodies that there is a statutory duty on the district/city 
councils to co-operate with in plan making).  Those discussions will continue 
and develop throughout the project to ensure that any strategic matters and 
cross boundary issues are identified and addressed through the Plan.

38)The production of the Plan requires a significant level of technical work to 
form the evidence base.  The evidence base will help to shape the policy 
options for the Plan, then be used to test those options, and in due course will 
form the supporting evidence for the consideration of the Plan at examination 
by an Inspector. Several key evidence studies are underway with consultants 
appointed. Each technical commission is being carried out with the 
involvement of all the authority partners, via a steering group to oversee the 
commission.

39)The Liaison and Heads of Planning Groups continue to meet monthly to 
progress and steer the work on the project.  In addition, the series of informal 
steering groups and working groups that have been established to oversee 
specialist topic workstreams, such as health, transport and natural capital 
continue to input and work is being refined through the Sustainability 
Appraisal process (with options assessed against environmental, economic 
and social objectives).

Risk Management 

40)The following have been identified as the key risks to the production of the 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050:

 Challenges of being a front-runner, producing a new type of Plan with 
little bespoke guidance in national policy.  

 Challenging timeframe for production of the Plan given the complexities 
of the topics it will cover and of partnership working.

 The development of a clear, agreed spatial strategy to form the basis of 
the policies; without this the defence of the Plan and its policies would 
be impossible.

 Links with external projects such as the OxCam Arc. 
 Links with and relationship to district Local Plans especially with those 

which haven’t yet been adopted.

Page 64



Page 9 of 15

41)Officers have developed a detailed risk register including mitigations that are 
reported to the Heads of Planning Group and the Programme Board to ensure 
that risk is managed.

DEAL GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE

42)Managing the priorities of the Programme Office in Q1 were delivered within a 
changing and challenging environment primarily created by the impact of 
Covid 19.

43)The focus has been to balance the achievement of business priorities within a 
virtual environment together with developing and setting up initiatives to 
support the team. The key achievements have been:

The financial management of the Growth Deal Capacity Fund:
 Production of the monthly financial statements
 Management and resolution of any transactional queries
 Initial review of budget forecast for the period 2020/21 - 2022/23 for 

staffing and non-staffing costs
 Working in collaboration with OCC Finance, as the accountable body, 

who now present a monthly assurance statement to accompany the 
Capacity Fund financial statement to the Growth Deal Programme 
Board.

Completion of Lessons Learn exercise:
 In collaboration with the Growth Deal Core Team, undertook an initial 

review of the Programme Governance of the Growth Deal in terms of;
 what went well,
 the initiatives implemented and in development, and,
 highlighting the need to finalise certain elements of the governance 

programme e.g. Growth Board and Growth Deal roles and 
responsibilities to enable the Growth Deal Programme Assurance 
framework to be finalised and fully implemented.

44)Continuing Business Continuity Planning:
 Developed the Business Continuity Plan for the Growth Deal Core 

team and the Growth Board Support team
 Manage the submission of regular Covid 19 reports on the impact to 

the team and its business priorities.

45)Risk Management 
 Strategic RAID (Risks, Assumptions, Issues and Dependencies) – 

developing the executive reporting pack.

46)Managing the Growth Deal Programme Board 
 virtual meeting schedule and accompanying Board papers.

47)Supporting the team during the transition of working from home. 
 Setting regular weekly team sessions to provide space whereby the 

teams can ‘virtually’ meet up, to act as an informal communication hub 
to share news and to maintain the team bond.

Page 65



Page 10 of 15

Risk Management

48)In reviewing the presentation of the Strategic Raid Log (risks, assumptions, 
issues and dependencies), work has continued to design an executive 
reporting pack aggregating the strategic risk and issue profile of the Growth 
Deal programme. 

49)This work is also now encompassing an assessment of the risk management 
process resulting from the impact of Covid 19 and the learning gained from 
the development of the Business Continuity Plan.

50)Presentation to the Growth Deal Programme Board is scheduled for Q2, with 
the plan to produce the executive reporting pack on a quarterly basis.  Any 
critical risk raised as a result of exceptional circumstances will be reported 
immediately.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

51)None arising from this report.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

52)None arising from this report. 

CONCLUSION 

53)This report outlines progress against the agreed Growth Deal year three, 
quarter one milestones.

54)The last quarter of the Deal has seen significant changes as we understand 
and address both the historic challenges the Deal has faced since its 
inception and those challenges presented by the COVID pandemic

55)The report shows that despite these challenges progress is being made 
towards meeting our commitments under the Deal and there are robust 
management arrangements, both within each council and across the 
partnership to address risks and issues as they arise. 

56)The flexibilities granted by government to assist us in securing the Deal are a 
significant moment for Oxfordshire and ensure that as we focus upon the 
delivery of the contract we can do so against a more realistic timetable and 
with the ability to ensure that the Deal ‘s utility ins maximised for Oxfordshire.

57)The report asks the Growth Board to note progress with the Deal and the 
achievement against the milestones committed to.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Page 66



Page 11 of 15

Report Author: Paul Staines, Growth Board Service Delivery Manager on 
behalf of Bev Hindle, Growth Board Director.

Contact information: paul.staines@oxfordshire.gov.uk

                                 bev.hindle@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Page 67

mailto:paul.staines@oxfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:bev.hindle@oxfordshire.gov.uk


Page 12 of 15

Appendix 1: a summary of the changes by district and Gantt chart showing the 
deliverability timelines

Page 68



 

P
age 69



Page 14 of 15

P
age 70



Page 15 of 15

P
age 71



www.OxfordshireGrowthBoard.org 

To: Oxfordshire Growth Board

Title of Report: Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal Financial Report 
Quarter 1 Year 3

Date: 22 September 2020

Report of: Director of Finance, Oxfordshire County Council 
(Accountable Body)

Status: Open

1.0 Introduction

1.1 This report sets out the financial position for Quarter 1 2020/21 of the following 
three stands of the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal and associated 
funding streams from Homes England (HE):

 Infrastructure Programme.
 Affordable Housing Programme. 
 Growth Deal Capacity Fund.

Executive Summary and Purpose:
The purpose of this report is to update the Growth Board on the 2020/21 financial 
position at the end of Quarter 1 for the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal.  
The report covers the three grant funding streams:

 Infrastructure programme 
 Affordable Housing programme 
 Growth Deal Capacity Fund 

The report is prepared by the Director of Finance for Oxfordshire County Council 
in the capacity of Section 151 Officer of the Accountable Body for the Oxfordshire 
Housing and Growth Deal and gives assurance over the grant funding and 
expenditure.

The fourth strand of the Deal, Productivity is reported through the OXLEP Board 
under separate arrangements

Recommendation: That the Growth Board notes the 2020/21 Quarter 1 financial 
report.

Appendices:
Annex 1 – Affordable Housing Programme
Annex 2 – Capacity Fund

Page 72

Agenda Item 10b



1.2 This report is prepared by the Director of Finance for Oxfordshire County 
Council (the County Council) in the capacity of Section 151 Officer of the 
Accountable Body for the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal and gives 
assurance over the grant funding and expenditure.

1.3  Funding for the fourth strand of the deal Productivity Programme is managed 
by the Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (OxLEP) and financial 
performance is reported independently to the Growth Board. 

2.0  Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal Fund Financial Governance

2.1 In accordance with the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal Delivery Plan, 
the County Council is the accountable body for the financial management of the 
three key financial streams. A quarterly report is provided to the Growth Board.  
Responsibility for the management of each financial stream is held by the 
programme lead.

2.2     As the Accountable Body, the County Council is responsible for ensuring that:

 Funding is received from Government.
 Recommendations to the Growth Board on schemes to be funded are in 

accordance with the grant conditions.
 Regular monitoring reports are provided to the Growth Board.

2.3 The County Council also holds the risk should Government require funding to 
be repaid if it is unspent or deemed to have been misused.  

3.0 Financial Summary Quarter 1 2020/21

3.1 Infrastructure Fund 

3.1.1  The Infrastructure Fund is a fund of £150.0m. The grant funding is paid in five 
equal annual instalments of £30.0m to the Accountable Body.  2020/21 is the 
third year of the Infrastructure Fund Programme.  

3.1.2 The total spend reported for Q1 2020/21 is £2.3m.  

3.1.3  Work is ongoing to profile and programme the delivery of schemes in the final 
three years of the Infrastructure Fund Programme from 2020/21 to 2022/23.  
Where possible, the County Council will continue to use its freedoms and 
flexibilities to ensure that funding is available to support the delivery profile of 
the programme, including potentially making funding available to support the 
completion of schemes beyond 2022/23. 

3.1.4 On 23 July a meeting was held between Growth Deal officers and 
representatives from Homes England and the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) to explore options to extend 
some of the deadlines to more accurately and realistically reflect a true delivery 
timeframe, taking into account that some of the challenges in delivering the deal 
within the original timeframe have been exacerbated by Covid-19.   It was 
agreed that extensions to schemes need to be considered on a scheme by 

Page 73



scheme and site-specific basis as part of an agreed, open and transparent 
comprehensive programme.

3.2 Affordable Housing Fund 

3.2.1  The Affordable Housing Fund is a fund of up to £60.0m available over the first 
three years of the growth deal from 2018/19 to 2020/21 of which £14.3m has 
been claimed in the first two years.  Following the meeting with Homes England 
and MHCLG on 23 July 2020, an agreement in principle has been reached to 
extend the programme into a fourth year.  The remaining funding has now been 
reprofiled over 2020/21 and 2021/22.  The projected number of affordable 
homes has also been reprofiled to reflect the change to the programme.  

3.2.2 The reprofiled Affordable Housing Programme detail is set out in Annex 3.  The 
actual funding claimed is agreed with Homes England at the end of each 
financial year based on the number of affordable housing units that are in 
contract to be delivered.  

3.2.3  A summary of revised profile for 2020/21 is set out in the following table:

Grant 
Claim

Affordable 
Housing 

Units

District Council

£m No.
Cherwell District Council 2.0 51
Oxford City Council 4.7 109
South Oxfordshire District Council 0.0 0
Vale of White Horse District Council 2.9 80
West Oxfordshire District Council 6.0 139
Total 15.6 379

3.3 Growth Deal Capacity Fund 

3.3.1  The Growth Deal Capacity Fund is a fund of £5.0m.  The grant has been paid 
to the County Council in three instalments.  The first instalment of £0.5m was 
paid in 2017/18, followed by an instalment of £2.5m in 2018/19 and £2.0m in 
2019/20.  

3.3.2 The funding is available to be used over the life of the programme which was 
originally planned to run from 2017/18 to 2022/23.  At year end, funding that 
has not been spent is carried forward through the County Council’s Earmarked 
Reserves.  At the beginning of 2020/21, £2.412m is held in reserve to support 
the remainder of the programme.  The budget is split into three elements:

 Housing Delivery: Staff costs for the core Housing and Growth Deal team.
 Delivery of the Oxfordshire Joint Statutory Spatial Plan including staff 

costs.
 Feasibility: costs of feasibility works including Rail Connectivity Study and 

Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy (OxIS) refresh.

Page 74



3.3.3 Annex 2 sets out the actual spend to 2019/20 and the forecast spend for the 
remaining programme.  In light of the potential extension of the Affordable 
Housing programme and an extension to the JSSP development, the future 
profile of spend is currently under review.  An update will be provided in the 
Quarter 2 report.  

3.3.4 For the Quarter 1 of 2020/21, total spend of £0.3m is reported against a forecast 
spend for the full year of £1.7m.  A summary of actual spend is detailed in the 
table below:

 2020/21

 
Quarter 1 

Spend
Forecast 
Outturn

Percentage 
spent

 £m £m
 

Housing Delivery 0.1 0.5 20%
Oxfordshire Joint Statutory Spatial Plan 0.2 0.9 22%
Feasibility 0.0 0.3 0%

 
Total Expenditure 0.3 1.7 17%

.
4.0 Risk Management

4.1 The financial performance of the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal Grant 
funding streams is closely monitored by the Growth Deal Programme Board. 
This will ensure that forecast spend of the Growth Deal period is accurate, 
based on the knowledge of the programme plans, and actual spend is reported, 
based on a monthly review of all transactional activity and balanced to the 
County Council financial systems.

4.2 Any risk identified to the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal Funding 
streams will be reported to the Growth Deal Programme Board for review and 
appropriate mitigation action will be agreed. Any strategic risk to the overall 
programme will be reported to the Growth Board.

5.0 Conclusion 

5.1 This report sets out the spend against the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth 
Deal funding streams for Quarter 1 2020/21.

5.2 The Growth Board is asked to note the 2020/21 Quarter 1 financial report.

Report Author: Lorna Baxter, Director of Finance  

Contact information: Hannah Doney, Head of Corporate Finance Tel: 07584174654

Page 75



Affordable Housing Programme Annex 1

Unit Type

Units Grant 
claimed

Forecast 
Units 

Grant 
claimed

Forecast 
Units 

Forecast 
Grant 
Claim

Forecast 
Units 

Forecast 
Grant Claim

Forecast 
Total Units 

Forecast 
Total Grant 

Claim 
No. £m No. £m No. £m No. £m No. £m

Social Rented 22 1.265 76 4.125 140 7.700 323 17.765 561 30.855
Affordable Rented 80 3.200 70 2.445 127 5.080 135 5.400 412 16.125
Shared Ownership 89 2.250 46 1.010 112 2.800 194 4.850 441 10.910
Total Units & Spend 191 6.715 192 7.580 379 15.580 652 28.015 1,414 57.890
Original Phasing - Expected Grant Claim 6.500 21.500 32.000 0.000 60.000
Original Phasing - Units 148 464 710 0 1,322

2018/19 2019/20 2021/222020/21

P
age 76



Capacity Fund Annex 2

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Actual 
Spend

Actual 
Spend

Actual 
Spend

Forecast 
Spend 

Forecast 
Spend 

Forecast 
Spend 

TOTAL

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Housing Delivery (Programme Team_Arc cr) 0.088 0.349 0.480 0.467 0.208 0.162 1.754
Joint Statutory Spatial Plan costs 0.252 1.347 0.901 2.500
Feasibility 0.030 0.042 0.338 0.410

Total Spend 0.088 0.631 1.869 1.706 0.208 0.162 4.664
Grant Received (0.500) (2.500) (2.000) (5.000)
Grant Carried Forward (-) / Drawn down (+) (0.412) (1.869) (0.131) 1.706 0.208 0.162 (0.336)

Year End Reserve Balance 0.412 2.281 2.412 0.706 0.498 0.336P
age 77



Infrastructure subgroup notes  - 24 August 2020 

Notes 
OF A MEETING OF THE 

 

Oxfordshire Growth Board Infrastructure 

Sub-Group 
 

HELD ON MONDAY 24 AUGUST 2020 AT 2.00 PM ON-LINE TEAMS 

MEETING 
 

 

Present: 
 
Councillors: Pieter-Paul Barker, Yvonne Constance, Caroline Green, Jeff Haine,  
Tom Hayes, Lynn Pratt and Judy Roberts 
 
Officers: Sue Halliwell, (Oxfordshire County Council), Bev Hindle (Oxfordshire Growth 
Board), Kevin Jacob (Oxfordshire Growth Board), Owen Jenkins, (Oxfordshire County 
Council), Rose Sutton, (Oxfordshire County Council).  
 
 

1 Apologies for absence and notifications of substitutions; 
declarations of interest; Chair's announcements  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ian Hudspeth.  In Councillor 
Hudspeth’s absence it was agreed that Councillor Yvonne Constance would chair the 
meeting.  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

2 Notes of the previous meeting  
 
The notes of the meeting held on 11 May 2020 were agreed as a correct record subject to 
the amendment of minute 42, 4th bullet to read ‘Assessment criteria for schemes would be 
updated and subgroup expressed the view that the criteria should reflect environmental 
and social aspects as well as being need based rather than availability of funding based’. 
 

3 Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy (OxIS) Update  
 
The subgroup received a presentation from Rose Sutton, Strategic Infrastructure 
Coordinator, Oxfordshire County Council providing an update on progress with the refresh 
of the Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy, (OxIS). It was noted that following cross 
Oxfordshire authority working to develop a consultancy brief which reflected the priorities 
of clean and inclusive growth, the deadline for receipt of tenders had expired earlier that 
day. A tender evaluation process would now be followed, and it was expected consultants 
would be appointed mid to end September. Depending on the timeline of the Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050 of which the OxIS would be an evidence base, endorsement by the Growth 
Board of a revised strategy was scheduled for July 2021. The subgroup would continue to 

Page 78

Agenda Item 10c



Infrastructure subgroup notes  - 24 August 2020 

receive regular progress updates at each meeting as part of the governance arrangements 
for the update.  
 
In discussion the following points were raised:  
 

• Members asked whether the refresh of OxIS would require or lead to the re-evaluation 
of projects within the current version. The subgroup was informed that under certain 
circumstances this might take place, but this would be a judgement call based on the 
specifics of an individual scheme. It was unlikely that if such a re-evaluation was to 
take place that a scheme would looked at from scratch, rather the work undertaken as 
part of the current OxIS would form the starting point, but that the updated OxIS would 
be used to inform any refresh. 

• It would be useful for there to be greater public visibility of OxIS related projects 
already completed.  

• It was agreed that the defined objectives for the OxIS update, (as included in the 
tender documents) could be circulated to the members of the subgroup for information. 

• Sharing of information around tender design – a general point not specific to the 
Growth Board was made that whilst councillors were involved and did consider the 
results of the tender processes there tended to be less involved in the tender design 
stages. However, the view was also expressed that it was also important for processes 
to be as streamlined as possible to avoid unnecessary delays.  

 
The subgroup noted the OxIS update. 
 

4 England's Economic Heartland's draft Transport Strategy  
 
The subgroup considered a summary of England’s Economic Heartland’s Draft Transport 
Strategy. John Disley, Infrastructure Strategy & Policy Manager at Oxfordshire County 
Council introduced the summary. The subgroup was informed that the public consultation 
on the draft strategy ran to 6 October 2020 and that whilst responsibility rested with the 
County Council for a formal response as the transport authority, there was considered to 
be potential value in a joined up Oxfordshire approach to supplement this.  
 
The subgroup discussed the likelihood of the EEH assuming statutory powers and any 
implications for this for Oxfordshire and the wider Oxford to Cambridge Arc including the 
potential for an Oxford to Cambridge Spatial Framework. The structural relationship 
between EEH and agencies such as Highways England was discussed. Appropriate 
consideration and planning for freight was important together with a shift towards greener 
modes of transport.  
 
The subgroup agreed that there could be potential value in a Growth Board response to 
the EEH consultation and that the County Council’s draft response might be a potential 
starting point for this, but was mindful that the districts and Oxford City Council might also 
wish to submit their own individual responses. 
 

5 Active Travel Programme Presentation  
 
Sue Halliwell, Director for Planning and Place gave a presentation which set out an update 
on the Active Travel Programme. The aim of the programme was to contribute to reducing 
pressure on the road network, contribute to economic growth and the reduction of 
emissions, improvements of quality of life and health and to link active travel with bus and 

Page 79



Infrastructure subgroup notes  - 24 August 2020 

rail options by enabling sustainable door to door journeys combining cycling or walking 
with public transport.  
 
The subgroup was informed that following recent HM Government initiatives, this existing 
broad framework had been looked at to see where delivery might be accelerated as part of 
the national emergency response to the Covid-19 pandemic, particularly with regard to 
measures to support and enable social distancing. Building on the existing School Streets 
scheme which aimed to quieten roads around schools, expressions of interest had been 
sought from local schools with a view to developing a bid to HM Government as part of 
Tranche 2 of the Government’s Emergency Active Travel programme which could see up 
to £2.3m allocated to projects across the county. Ideas submitted by schools would be 
considered at pace to see how they might support HM Government’s response to Covid-
19 and meet the strict criteria set by the Government prior to bids being submitted. 
Announcements were expected in September.  
 
The subgroup noted that in the previous tranche of the Emergency Active Travel bids 
process, some £600,000, (£300k Department for Transport) and £300k Oxfordshire 
County Council funding) had been secured for schemes across Oxfordshire which could 
be implement within only a 4-8-week delivery window. These included projects to cycle 
lanes, cycle parks and traffic signals.  
 
In discussion, members were supportive of the programme and pleased to note the 
enthusiasm shown by schools. It was suggested that the request for potential scheme 
might be rolled out further. It was acknowledged that further work was taking place to 
encourage further requests from schools and more widely, but that it was important to 
remain mindful of the overall amount of funding available. Members also queried the 
degree to which responses given by the public to national consultations related to Active 
Travel were feedback by HM Government to Oxfordshire County Council and how local 
communities interested in the introduction of 20mph speed limits in their localities might 
take that interest further.  
 
The subgroup noted the Active Travel Programme Update.   
 

6 Oxfordshire Strategic Transport Forum Membership Request  
 
The subgroup considered a request on behalf of the Oxfordshire Strategic Transport 
Forum to the Growth Board Director which set out a case for a more direct relationship 
between the Forum and the Oxfordshire Growth Board. It was noted that this request had 
been previously considered by the Oxfordshire Growth Board Executive Officer Group who 
had been supportive of such a relationship being most appropriate via representation of 
the Forum on the Infrastructure subgroup.   
 
In discussion, the subgroup supported the addition of a non-voting representative of the 
Forum to its membership. It was strongly felt that the value and insight which could be 
offered by the Forum as an organisation representing different transport providers across 
Oxfordshire could be very useful and add value to the subgroup’s work. 
 

7 Homes from Infrastructure Programme Update  
 
Owen Jenkins, Director of Growth and Economy provided an update on proposed changes 
to the Homes from Infrastructure Programme which formed part of the wider Oxfordshire 
Housing and Growth Deal. It was emphasised to the subgroup that: 

Page 80



Infrastructure subgroup notes  - 24 August 2020 

 

• As with any infrastructure programme, the Homes from Infrastructure, (HIF) 
Programme was regularly reviewed, and it was to be expected that there would 
alterations and flexes to it over time dependent on changing circumstances.  

• Oxfordshire County Council was the formal accountable body for funds allocated to the 
HIF programme and change requests to the programme followed its processes 
although every effort was made to consult and engage with other partners, timing 
could make this difficult to achieve.  

• The value of committed schemes in the programme could not exceed the total of 
£150m within the Housing and Growth Deal so schemes which included an element of 
funding from other sources, (such as S106 receipts) could not be included as 
committed until those funds had been received.  

• Whilst Home England and HM Government had indicated that there might be some 
flexibility around delivery in light of the Covid-19 pandemic, this did not alter the basis 
of the Housing and Growth Deal that the funding for infrastructure provided was to 
facilitate the accelerate the delivery of housing.  

 
In discussion, the subgroup notes the update and asked several questions relating to 
specific schemes within their areas and it was accepted that more could be done around 
consulting with local councillors at the appropriate time in relation to changes to scheme in 
their areas. 
 

8 Dates of next meetings  
 
26 October 2020 14:00 
14 December 2020 14:00 
22 February 2021 14:00 (to be rescheduled) 
26 April 2021 14:00 
 
 
The meeting closed at 4.00 pm 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 81



Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Notes - 16 July 2020 

Notes 
OF A MEETING OF THE 

 

Oxfordshire Growth Board Oxfordshire 

Plan 2050 Advisory Sub-Group 
 

HELD ON THURSDAY 16 JULY 2020 AT 10.00 AM 

VIRTUAL MEETING VIA MS TEAMS 
 

 

Present: 
 
Councillors James Mills (Chair), Colin Clarke, Jeff Haine, Alex Hollingsworth,  
Jeannette Matelot, Anne-Marie Simpson and Catherine Webber 
 
Officers: Inga Doherty, (Oxfordshire County Council, Giles Hughes (West Oxfordshire 
District Council), Kevin Jacob, (Oxfordshire Growth Board), Vanessa Scott, (West 
Oxfordshire District Council), Sam Thomas, (Cherwell District Council) and  
Rachel Williams (Oxfordshire Plan 2050) 
 
 

1 Apologies for absence and notifications of substitutes; 
declarations of interest; Chair's announcements 
 
No apologies for absence were received. Councillor Clarke indicated he had to leave the 
meeting at 11:00 due to another urgent meeting commitment.  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

2 Notes of the previous meeting  
 
The notes of the meeting held on 18 June 2020 were agreed as a correct record of the 
meeting. 
 

3 Oxfordshire Strategic Vision - update 
 
The subgroup received a report setting out an update on a Strategic Vision for 
Oxfordshire. This followed on from the subgroup’s discussion at its June meeting of an 
initial proposal by the Growth Board Director to develop a spatial planning framework for 
Oxfordshire and incorporated comments made by members of the sub-group.   
 
It was noted that it was intended to bring a further paper to the subgroup in August and 
continue a more in-depth discussion there. Members were encouraged to review the 
document further and submit questions to Rachel Williams in advance of the next meeting. 
 
 
 

Page 82

Agenda Item 10d



Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Notes - 16 July 2020 

 
 

4 Climate Change Workshop 
 
The subgroup undertook a workshop style discussion around Climate Change and its links 
to the Oxfordshire Plan 2050, building on previous discussions and presentations on a 
range of climate change related issues.  
 
Rachel Williams, Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Lead provided a presentation that focussed 
discussion around the following themes and topics. Discussion was facilitated by number 
of specialist officers from across Oxfordshire: 
 

• Transport emissions and sustainable travel 

• Energy use and carbon from buildings 

• Low carbon and renewable energy and heat 

• Use of resources 

• Natural environment 

• Other topic areas 
 
Members were asked to consider each topic area in respect of the following questions: 
 

• What are the priorities? 

• What should the Oxfordshire Plan be seeking to do about this? 

• What needs to be done elsewhere, (outside of the remit of the Oxfordshire Plan 
2050)/by others? 

 
Several general themes arose from the workshop for further work and subsequent 
consideration: 
 

• The challenges and opportunities around balancing desires to increase active travel, 
increase public transport, (particularly in rural locations and directly between market 
towns) and reducing transport emissions within the context of an ageing population, 
economic recovery and the scope of a strategic spatial plan like the Oxfordshire Plan 
2050.  

• Domestic and non-domestic building energy emissions through construction and 
operations, the role of national and local regulation including opportunities to learn 
from practice in other areas and the challenge of retrofitting existing property stock.  

• The potential role of the Oxfordshire Plan in encouraging low carbon local energy 
generation and challenges to this.  

• The importance of planning for future water and sewerage provision and 
environmental protections of rivers as part of ideas around use of resources in meeting 
Oxfordshire population’s needs.  

• Zones and corridors in connecting natural environments and protecting biodiversity 
which also had links to agricultural practice.   

• The importance of the links between the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 and other strategic 
documents such as OxIS, but also other plans affecting the future such as minerals 
and waste policy, whilst remaining cognitive of the remit of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050.  

 
 

Page 83



Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Notes - 16 July 2020 

Following the discussion, Rachel Williams informed the subgroup that officers would reflect 
on the points made and that work would continue to connect them as smoothly as possible 
in terms of the development of the Oxfordshire Plan moving forward. 
 

5 Draft skeleton for the Reg 18 (part 2) Consultation Document  
 
The subgroup was reminded that at its previous meeting it had been presented with an 
initial draft of the skeleton framework for the Regulation 18 (Part 2) Consultation 
document. This had been updated considering member comments given at the time and 
given the time available councillors were further encouraged to submit any additional 
comments outside of the meeting.  
 
A discussion took place regarding next steps, together with the outputs of the climate 
change workshop item and an additional document on the Plan guiding principles 
submitted by Cllr Webber. It was felt by several subgroup councillors that there should be 
a continued discussion about the Plan guiding principles and the submitted document. The 
subgroup was informed that this was felt to link to, and be supportive of, a discussion 
about the Strategic Vision. The additional document on the Plan guiding principles could 
form part of the pack for the next agenda with Officers cross-checking the available 
documentation and information. This was supported. 
 

6 Future meetings 
 
Thursday 13 August 2020 to include a workshop on the Strategic Vision and presentation 
on the OxIS review. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 11.55 am 
 
 
 

 

Page 84



Oxfordshire Plan 2050 subgroup notes - 20 August 2020  

Minutes 
OF A MEETING OF THE 

 

Oxfordshire Growth Board Oxfordshire 

Plan 2050 Advisory Sub-Group 
 

HELD ON THURSDAY 20 AUGUST 2020 AT 10.00 AM 

VIRTUAL VIA MS TEAMS 
 

 

Present: 
 
Members: Councillors James Mills (Chair), Colin Clarke, Alex Hollingsworth,  
Jeannette Matelot, Anne-Marie Simpson and Catherine Webber 
 
Officers: Alison Bailey, Principal Planner, Bev Hindle, Growth Board Director,  
Giles Hughes, Chief Executive West Oxfordshire District Council, Stefan Robinson, 
Growth Board Manager and Rachel Williams, Oxfordshire Plan Lead 
 
 

7 Apologies for absence and notifications of substitutes; 
declarations of interest; Chair's announcements  
 
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Haine. There were no declarations of interest. 
 

8 Notes of the previous meeting  
 
The notes of the previous meeting were agreed as a correct record.  
 

9 Oxfordshire's Strategic Vision  
 
The Sub-group discussed a series of questions presented by officers concerning how a 
Strategic Vision for Oxfordshire might be framed. The aim was to build consensus around 
ambition, outcomes and priorities for Oxfordshire.  
 
Officers explained that the intention was to create a vision and narrative that would tie 
together and read between shared strategies, which may be associated with the Growth 
Board. It would not be a statutory document, and it was an internal development process 
at this stage. This was an initial discussion to help shape thinking. It was explained that 
this may also help the county to have a greater level of influence at national and sub-
national levels, and that there would need to be a broad and high-level approach.  
 
The Sub-group suggested that the emphasis on well-being, as presented in the report, 
was appropriate for the Strategic Vision. In a discussion about ambitions for Oxfordshire, 
and potential goals linked to enhanced well-being, it was requested that there should be 
additional references to inclusivity, and, rather than addressing inequalities (as referenced 

Page 85



Oxfordshire Plan 2050 subgroup notes - 20 August 2020  

in the report), any vision should look to actively reduce inequalities and promote social 
mobility. It was mentioned that wherever possible, the quality of the natural environment 
should not be compromised by other ambitions. The principal of net benefit should apply 
wherever change occurs. 
 
Members emphasised the importance of fostering a sense of community in new 
developments, and that community infrastructure should be built in from the start to 
support this. Members also commented that if the vision is to reference housing need, then 
this should refer to the needs of current and future generations.  
 
In commenting on draft criteria for judging plans and strategies, the Sub-group 
emphasised the importance of Oxfordshire's environmental assets. 
 
There was general endorsement of the proposed way forward.  Officers explained that 
there would be a process of engagement with local authorities prior to a Draft Strategic 
Vision being taken to the Growth Board.  

 
Under the same agenda item, the Sub-group also had a discussion concerning guiding 
principles for the Oxfordshire Plan 2050. Some suggested that all other principles should 
be answerable to addressing the challenges presented by climate change, and that the 
principles could be strengthened to take greater account of the climate emergency. Others 
said that this was a matter of process and implementation rather than principles, and that 
members would be more comfortable once there was a clear and measurable plan for 
addressing climate change in place.  

 
Officers explained that the current draft guiding principles tried to provide a balance to the 
weight of all principles, and that there was already a strong direction on climate change in 
the existing guiding principles. They explained that guiding principles would likely form part 
of the Strategic Vision and there would an opportunity to consider them in that context, 
including next steps.  
 
 

10 Future meetings  
 
The Sub-group noted the dates of its future meetings, as presented in the agenda.  
 
 
The meeting closed at 12:00 
 
 

 
 

Page 86



1

Growth Board Scrutiny Panel Work Plan 
The Growth Board Scrutiny Panel agrees its own Work Plan, which is reviewed at each meeting. The Panel is encouraged to be strict in 
prioritising key issues for review, in addition to the entirety of the Growth Board’s forthcoming agendas, which will feature as a standard item 
on the Work Plan. The Panel’s ongoing review of their work plan should be considered in conjunction with the Growth Board’s Forward Plan.

Meeting date Item Description and rationale Lead Officer
Growth Board 
Review

To consider progress and recommendations submitted to the Growth 
Board associated with the longer-term conclusions of the Growth Board 
review.

Bev Hindle, 
Growth Board 
Director

The Oxford to
Cambridge Arc 

To consider a report to the Growth Board setting out an update on the 
current work being undertaken relating to the Oxford to Cambridge Arc

Bev Hindle, 
Growth
Board Director

Consultation on 
England's 
Economic 
Heartland's draft 
Transport 
Strategy  

To consider a report to the Growth Board setting out a suggested 
response on behalf of the Growth Board to England’s Economic 
Heartland’s consultation on its draft Transport Strategy

Bev Hindle, 
Growth Board 
Director

Oxfordshire 
Housing and 
Growth Deal 
Progress Report 
– Q1 2020/21 

To consider a report to the Growth Board setting out the Quarter 1 
2020/21 progress report for the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal 
and any amendments to the work programme as necessary. 

Bev Hindle, 
Growth Board 
Director

15th September 
2020 (Virtual 
Meeting)

Oxfordshire 
Housing and 
Growth Deal 

To consider a report to the Growth Board setting out the Quarter 1 
2020/21 financial outturn report for the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth 
Deal.

Hannah Doney, 
Head of 
Corporate 

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 11



2

Financial 
Outturn - Q1 
2020/2021

Finance, 
Oxfordshire 
County Council  

Meeting date Item Description and rationale Contact
Q2 Housing and 
Growth Deal 
and Financial 
Summary

To consider a report to the Growth Board on the 2020/21 Quarter 2 
progress report for the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal and 
endorse any amendments to the programmes of work as necessary. Also, 
to receive the Quarter 2 financial summary for the Deal.

Bev Hindle, 
Growth Board 
Director

Growth Board 
and Health and 
Wellbeing Board 
joint work

To review the recommendations to the Growth Board concerning joint 
working between the Growth Board and the Oxfordshire Health and 
Wellbeing Board.  

Rosie Rowe, 
Health Place 
Shaping Lead 

Oxfordshire Rail 
Connectivity 
Study: Stage 2 
Outcome 
(provisional)

To review a report to the Growth Board on progress and any outcomes 
from Stage 2 of the rail connectivity study. 

John Disley, 
OCC 
Infrastructure 
Strategy 
Manager

The Oxford to 
Cambridge Arc

To receive any updates from the Growth Board Director in respect of 
regional developments within the Oxford to Cambridge Arc.  

Bev Hindle, 
Growth Board 
Director

Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050 
Update 
(provisional)

To receive an update on progress in the development of the Oxfordshire 
Plan ahead of the Regulation 18 (Part 2) consultation.

Bev Hindle, 
Growth Board 
Director

17th November 
2020 

Devolution 
White Paper 
(provisional)

To review matters to the Growth Board setting out what impact the 
Devolution White Paper might have on the Growth Board’s work and 
operation. 

Bev Hindle, 
Growth Board 
Director

P
age 88



3

Action Log

This action log sets out requests for information and actions required by the Scrutiny Panel. Any requests for information that do not 
relate to a specific agenda item will be published on the Growth Board’s website alongside the next available Scrutiny Panel Agenda, 
except where that information requires the disclosure of exempt information, as set out in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

Date 
raised by 
the Panel 

Action Lead 
Member / 

Officer 

Panel Updated/
Discussed on

Progress Notes 

28th May 
2020

i Gantt chart or table showing 
progress against delivery of 
investment in infrastructure to 
support homes (as part of the 
Homes from Infrastructure 
workstream within the Housing 
and Growth Deal),
including any available 
information on the likely impact 
of Covid-19 on these projects.

ii Overall delivery and progress 
reports on projects under 
OXIS in a similar format.

Owen Jenkins,
Oxfordshire 
County Council
Director of 
Growth & 
Economy

22 July 2020

15 September 
2020

Due to an ongoing review and resource 
constraints not all the information is 

ready for publication at this stage in the 
form a Gantt Chart.

However, the Panel will receive,
 List of Infrastructure schemes
 Progress at various stages of 

these projects
 The spend profile and specific 

spent projections by year

This will be published as part of a 
supplementary agenda pack update 24 
hours before the meeting on Tuesday 

21st July 2020.

This request was not completed on the 
above-mentioned date of 21st July 2020 

due to ongoing reviews and resource 
constraints.

However, Part 1 of the request is 
complete and included in this Scrutiny 
Panel Agenda of 15th September 2020 

P
age 89



4

meeting as a part of the Infrastructure 
update to the Growth Board.

Part 2 Which mentions OxIS projects 
has been clarified as a strategy, not a 

project and for which the timelines have 
already been presented to the Panel at 
the previous 22nd July 2020 meeting. 

Details of the high-level project 
programme and governance 

arrangements for OxIS are attached to 
this report. 

22nd July 
2020

Web page links requested
1. C40 Mayors Principle
2. Young person’s blog
3. Impact of Covid-19 on the 

self- employed. Latest July 
2020

Amit Alva, 
Growth Board 
Scrutiny Officer

27th July 2020 Completed (email to Scrutiny Panel)P
age 90



Oxfordshire Infrastructure 
Strategy Update (OxIS)

As presented to the Infrastructure Advisory 

Sub-Group August 2020

P
age 91



Overview
• An update to the Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy (OxIS) was endorsed 

by the Growth Board in June 2020.

• Funding for consultants to carry out the technical update has been secured 
via the Growth Deal Capacity Fund.

• Consultancy brief has been drafted via a cross-authority steering group 
and reflects the shift in policy towards sustainable, clean and inclusive 
growth across Oxfordshire.

• The OxIS update will form part of the evidence base for the Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050, as a result the timetable of OxIS is aligned to the next two 
phases of the consultation.

• Instruction to Tender (ITT) was released on the procurement portal on 28 
July 2020 with the deadline for bids set as 24 August 2020.

P
age 92



Project Timeline
Date
(week commencing)

Key Milestones

28/07/20 Council issues consultancy brief to consultants via SEBP

07/08/20 Deadline for bidders’ questions to be submitted to the Council

24/08/20 Tender deadline

24/08/2020 – 04/09/2020 Tender evaluation

07/09/20 Interviews with consultants (if required)

14/09/20 Appointment of consultants

21/09/20 – 18/12/20 Draft stage 1 report / prepare for consultation

December 2020 EOG approve draft strategy for consultation

January 2021 Public and stakeholder consultation on Stage 1

February 2021 Stage 1 report to growth board

March – June 2021 Draft stage 2 report

June 2021 Final OxIS to EOG for endorsement

July 2021 Final OxIS to Growth Board for endorsement

N.B. Timings for Stage 2 are dependant 

on the Reg 18 Oxfordshire Plan 

consultation proceeding as planned in 

January 2020, a delay in the Reg 18  

consultation could result in a delay to 

the commencement of Stage 2.

P
age 93



Governance

Growth Board 

Executive Officer 

Group (EOG) 

Infrastructure 

Advisory Sub-Group

OxIS Steering Group

(Project Board)

Project Manager

Consultants

Growth Deal 

Programme Board

Oxfordshire Growth 

Board

Oxfordshire Strategic 

Transport Forum

Member Led

Officer Led

P
age 94


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes

	4 Growth Board response to scrutiny panel recommendations - 22 July 2020
	6a OxCam Arc Local Natural Capital Plan
	7 Growth Board Continuous Improvement Programme
	7. Appendix 1 - GB Review - OSTF ToR

	8 Oxford to Cambridge Arc Update
	9 Consultation on England's Economic Heartland's draft Transport Strategy
	9. Appendix 1 Draft EEH Transport Strategy Summary
	9. Appendix 2 OGB.EEHtransportstrategy.draftcomments.08sep20
	9. Appendix 3 200807 - Baroness Vere - EEH -Sub-national Transport Bodies

	10a Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal Progress Report - Quarter 1 2020/2021
	10b Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal Financial Outturn - Quarter 1 2020/2021
	10.b Growth Deal Annex Q1 Financial

	10c Infrastructure sub-group update
	10d Oxfordshire Plan 2050 subgroup - update
	10.d Minutes200820

	11 Work Programme for the Scrutiny Panel and Action Log - September 2020
	11. GB Infra Sub-Group 24.08.2020 (003)




